
  

GENESIS POWER LIMITED 

Full year results for announcement to the market – 27 August 2012 

Reporting Period 12 months to 30 June 2012 

Previous Reporting 
Period 

12 months to 30 June 2011 

  

 Audited Audited   

 30 June 2012 

Amount ($NZ 000s) 

30 June 2011 

Amount ($NZ 000s) 

Percentage 
change 

Revenue from 
ordinary activities 
 

2,270,183  1,834,487 23.7% increase  

Net profit (loss) 90,250 (16,609) 443% increase 
 

Earnings before 
interest, tax, 
depreciation, 
amortisation, fair 
value adjustments  
and other 
gains/losses 
(EBITDAF) 

392,646 292,654 34% increase 

 

2010/11 Total 
Dividends (000s) 

The Board did not declare a dividend in respect of the 
2010/2011 financial year, due to the funding requirements for 
the acquisition of the Tekapo A and B power stations.   
 

2011/12 Interim 
Dividend  and 
Payment Date 
(000s) 

No 2011/12 interim dividend was declared. 

2011/12 Final 
Dividend and 
Payment Date 
(000s) 

The Board has not declared a final dividend, in respect of the 
2011/12 financial year, due to the funding requirements for the 
acquisition of the Tekapo A and B power stations.  

 



Commentary: 
 
 

Genesis Energy’s audited full year result for the twelve months 
to 30 June 2012 was a Net Profit After Tax (‘NPAT’) of $90.2 
million.  The NPAT result represents an increase of $106.8 
million compared to the same period last year.  The lower result 
in the previous year was impacted by a revaluation loss on the 
Tekapo A and B power stations of $67.8 million (after tax).  
 
Revenue increased to $2,270 million in 2012 from $1,834 
million. This largely reflected an increase in generation output, a 
full year contribution from Tekapo A and B and an increase in the 
average price received for wholesale electricity generation. In a 
very competitive market, a modest level of retail electricity price 
increases was implemented. 
 
Total generation output for the full year was up 30% to 8,467 
GWh from 6,526 GWh in the previous year with both renewable 
and thermal generation increasing over the year.  The average 
price for generation was $91.10/MWh compared to 
$59.67/MWh for the previous year. 
.  
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Management Discussion of the financial results for the year ended 30 June 2012 

 

Summary financial results 2012 2011   

 $million $million  
Change 
$million 

Change 
(%) 

Revenue 2,270 1,834 436 24% 

Total operating expenses(1) 1,878 1,542 336 22% 

EBITDAF (2) 393 293 100 34% 

Depreciation depletion & amortisation  152 144 8 6% 

Impairment 12 9 3 33% 

Revaluation 0 97 -97 -100% 

Fair value change (gains)/losses 11 13 -2 -15% 

Other (gains)/losses 3 -1 4 400% 

Earnings before interest and tax 214 31 183 590% 

Interest 89 49 40 82% 

Tax 35 1 34 3400% 

Net profit after tax 90 -17 107 629% 

Shareholder's equity 1,800 1,712 88 5% 

(1)  Includes cost of electricity purchases     

(2)  Earnings before net finance expense, tax, depreciation, amortisation, fair  

      value changes and other gains and losses 

 

Net Profit after Tax (NPAT) 

New Zealand's largest energy retailer Genesis Energy is reaping the benefits of a greater focus 

on customer value combined with optimising the Company's generation portfolio, particularly 

last-year's acquisition of the Tekapo A and B hydroelectric power stations, and its strategic 

investment in the Kupe Oil and Gas project, reporting a strong uplift in profits for the year 

ended 30 June 2012 to $90 million from a loss of $17 million in the previous year.  The previous 

year's result included an after tax revaluation loss of $68 million.  

 

EBITDAF 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and fair value adjustments (EBITDAF) 

rose by $100 million to $393 million in the 2012 financial year from $293 million in 2011. The 

34% rise in EBITDAF was largely due to the following factors:  

 Higher wholesale electricity prices; 

 Increased renewable generation (including Tekapo); and  

 Higher thermal generation  (including increased coal burn on the previous year) 

 
Revenue  

Revenue increased to $2,270 million from $1,834 million. This largely reflected an increase in 

generation output, a full year contribution from Tekapo A and B and an increase in the average 

price received for wholesale electricity generation. The Kupe field also produced volumes 

across a full 12 months. In a very competitive market, a modest level of retail electricity price 

increases was implemented. 
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Depreciation, depletion and amortisation (“DDA”) 

DDA charges increased from $144 million to $152 million. This reflected a full year's 

depreciation charge for Tekapo compared to one month in the prior financial year. 

 

Impairment and Revaluation 
The impairment expense increased to $12 million from $9 million in 2011 due to higher capital 

spend on Huntly units 1 to 4 and 6. 

   

Genesis Energy's revaluation charge decreased from $97 million ($68 million after tax) to nil.  

The 2011 revaluation charge was against the $821 million acquisition price of the Tekapo A and 

B hydro-electric power stations.  

 

Fair value change 

Unrealised gains and losses on hedging instruments are recorded in the income statement 

when the instruments fail to meet the effectiveness test under IFRS accounting standards. 

Those that meet the effectiveness test are taken to the balance sheet. In 2012, fair value 

changes depressed reported pre-tax profit by $11 million, compared to $13 million last year. 

The majority of the fair value charge was due to electricity options and swaptions valuations 

impacts with changes to the projected price path and call volumes increasing offset by gains on 

crude oil price instruments. 

 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs for the year rose to $89 million from $49 million. This rise reflects a full year's 

borrowing costs for the acquisition of the Tekapo A and B power stations compared to one 

month in the prior financial year. The higher borrowings were partially offset by favourable 

interest rate movements. 

Cashflow & capital expenditure   

 

Cashflow year to June 30 ($m) 2012 2011 Change % 

Net operating cashflow 369 246 123 50% 

Net investing cashflow -69 -868 799 -92% 

     

 

Operating cashflow increased by $123 million reflecting the contribution from a full year of 

operations from the Tekapo A and B power stations compared to one month in the prior 

financial year and a reduction in fuel inventory of $43 million. 

Liquidity and balance sheet: 

Total borrowings decreased by $198 million to $1,019 million due to strong operating cash 

flows, which were applied to paying down debt.  As a result, Genesis Energy's gearing ratio 

(debt to debt plus equity) improved to 36.2% from 41.6% as at 30 June 2011.  The Capital 

Bonds are treated as equity under the Group's bank funding covenants by Standard and Poor's 
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for credit rating evaluation purposes.  Treating the Capital Bonds as equity reduces gearing 

further to 26.4%, compared to a bank covenant threshold of 50%.  

 

Interest1 is covered by group EBITDAF 4.5 times.  If interest on the Capital Bonds is treated as 

equity in line with the Company's bank covenants, interest is covered 6.2 times by EBITDAF. 

 

At balance date Genesis Energy had available funding of $1,220 million with an average tenor of 

9.4 years.  Of the available facilities, $220 million was undrawn at balance date. 

 

On 29 March 2012, Standard & Poor's re-affirmed Genesis Energy's BBB+ credit rating with a 

stable outlook.  

 

Dividends 

 

No dividends were paid or declared during the year.  The Genesis Energy Board and the 

Company's shareholders agreed a two-year suspension of dividend payments was appropriate 

to assist the Company with funding the purchase of the Tekapo A and B hydro 

stations.  Genesis Energy intends to resume paying dividends during the 2012/13 financial year 

with an Interim dividend payment in March 2013.  It is Genesis Energy's intention to pay a 

dividend that provides shareholders with a consistent, reliable and attractive dividend yield even 

in periods of business cycle downturn.  The amount of the interim dividend will be announced 

with the results for the first 6 months of the 2013 financial year. 

 

Market conditions:   

  

The electricity market was largely characterised in 2011/2012 by below average inflows and 

below average storage levels in hydro-electric schemes, particularly in the South Island. Overall, 

the country experienced a cool and cloudy summer with high rainfall in the North Island, but 

lower than average falls into the major hydro catchments in the South Island. Inflows to the 

southern hydro schemes picked up in May and reached average levels by the end of June 

2012. 

 

                                                           
1
 Interest expense on borrowings  is finance expense from the income statement less time value of 

money adjustments on provisions (see note 14 from the financial statements) 
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Customer Experience 

Retail: Year to June 30 2012 2011 Change % 
     
Electricity Customers  548,356 549,255 -899 -0.2% 

Gas Customers  112,718 113,434 -716 -0.6% 

LPG Customers  7,610 5,239 2,371 45.3% 

Total Customer Numbers 668,684 667,928 756 -0.1% 
     

Total Advanced Meters Installed 267,675 178,102 89,573 50.3% 
     

Retail Electricity Sales (GWh) 5,429 5,705 -276 -5% 

Retail Electricity Purchases (GWh) 5,781 6,086 -305 -5% 

Retail Gas Sales (PJ) 5.4 4.6 0.8 17% 

Retail Gas Purchases (PJ) 5.6 4.6 1 22% 

Retail LPG Sales (tonnes) 2,002 1046 956 91% 

 

The electricity and gas market for domestic and commercial users has been characterised by 

intense competition between suppliers. New Zealand has one of the highest electricity 

customer churn rates in the world. Genesis Energy's target is to improve margins. 

 

Genesis Energy's electricity and gas market shares at 30 June 2012 were 26.6 per cent and 

42.7 per cent, respectively.  Market shares for this period are slightly lower than the same 

period last year (electricity at 26.8 per cent and gas at 43.5 per cent). Total customer churn for 

the year was 18 per cent. 

 

Customer numbers held steady against significant market competition and the Electricity 

Authority's public campaign encouraging customers to compare and switch energy retailers. 
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While the total number of customers dropped 2%, the customer base in the South Island 

increased to 67,935 from 42,500 at the end of June 2011.  

 

Energy Management 

 

Generation: Year to June 30 2012 2011 Change % 

Gas (GWh) 3,041 3,408 -367 -11% 

Coal (GWh) 2,613 980 1,634 167% 

Total Thermal (GWh) 5,654 4,387 1,267 29% 

Hydro (GWh) 2,788 2,111 677 32% 

Wind (GWh) 25 27 -2.5 -9% 
     

Total Renewable (GWh) 2,813 2,138 675 32% 

Total Generation (GWh) 8,467 6,526 1,941 30% 
     
Average Price Received for Generation 
($/MWh) (4, 5) 91.10 59.67 31.43 53% 

 

Cold temperatures and low inflows into southern hydro lakes resulted in increased generation 

from Genesis Energy's North Island assets.  Total generation output for the full year was up 

30% as the Company benefited from a full year's contribution from Tekapo A and B, plus higher 

output from its thermal units at the Huntly Power Station. 

 

Generation from the Company's four coal/gas fuelled units was up 63% as the Company met 

its contracted wholesale market position and sought to improve its balance sheet by reducing 

its coal stockpile. 

 

Huntly 

 
On 27 April 2012, Genesis Energy was granted replacement operating consents for the Huntly 
Power Station site by the Waikato Regional Council, for a further 25 years. No appeals were 
received against the Council's decision. 

 

The addition of new baseload renewable generation has continued to impact the market, 
resulting in a significant excess of thermal capacity and the continued declining utilisation of the 
older Huntly Units 1 to 4, notwithstanding dry conditions this past year. In February 2012 the 
Company announced that Huntly Unit 3 would be placed into long-term storage from the end of 
November 2012. The Company intends to keep the remaining Huntly Units available to meet 
market needs for as long as they are commercially valued.  
 
A second Huntly Unit (Unit 1) remains scheduled for entry into long-term storage in December 
2014. However, a degree of optionality will be maintained over the storage schedule for the 
second Unit to respond to any changes in anticipated supply or demand. 
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Tekapo 

 

On-going monitoring at the Tekapo Canal has been undertaken as a continuation of activity by 
Meridian Energy, previous owners of the Tekapo assets.   This monitoring has indicated that the 
canal has deteriorated since August 2011, with new leaks in the canal appearing.  
 
Renewed focus on seismicity issues since the major Canterbury earthquakes in 2010 and 2011 
has also brought additional focus on the long-term serviceability of the canal. The current risk of 
progressive canal failure is considered in excess of normally accepted levels. 
 
The Company views the Tekapo Canal remediation as a priority and has allocated in excess of 
$125 million for remediation work to address long term stability and serviceability of the canal, 
as well as known occurrences of leakages. The remediation programme is expected to be 
completed over a two-year period, and will involve two (2) fourteen week outage periods for the 
Canal, the first commencing in January 2013.  

Other generation developments 

Genesis Energy continues to develop a pipeline of future economic generation opportunities 

that position the Company for growth. Genesis Energy remains open to opportunities for 

partnerships in these developments. The Company is advancing a range of wind farm options 

including two potentially significant wind farm sites - Castle Hill in the Wairarapa region and 

Slopedown in Southland. Resources consents for the Castle Hill Wind Farm were announced 

by independent commissioners on 11 June 2012. Subsequently, the Company appealed certain 

conditions within the consents to the Environment Court, as have three other parties. Genesis 

Energy continues to progress work on other generation prospects.  

Fuel Management 

 

Fuel management 2012 2011 Change % 

Wholesale Gas Sales (PJ) 15.4 13.2 2.2 17% 

Wholesale Gas purchases (PJ) 44.1 45.8 -1.7 -3.7% 

Gas used in internal generation. (PJ) 23.1 27.9 -4.9 
-
17.4% 

Wholesale Coal Sales (kt) 74.9 34.9 40.0 115% 

Coal purchases (PJ) 19.4 21.5 -2.1 -10% 

Coal Used in internal generation (PJ) 28.7 11.3 17.4 154% 
     

Coal Stockpile (kilotonnes) 1,059 1,532 -473 -31% 

 

The coal stockpile reduced 31% during the year as coal-fired generation increased and efforts 

to re-profile deliveries under existing coal supply agreements continued.  During the year the 

Company used 28.7PJ of coal and 23.1PJ of gas for electricity generation.  Gas generation 

was down 17% due to higher coal burn and the Maui gas pipeline outage in October 2011. 
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Kupe 

 

Kupe: year to June 30 2012 2011 Change % 

Gas Sales (PJ) 5.9 5.5 0.4 7% 

Oil Sales (kbbl) 531 563 -32 -6% 

LPG Sales (kilotonnes) 25.5 24.5 1.0 4% 
     

Genesis Energy's share of natural gas, oil and LPG sales from Kupe is proportionate to its 31% 

share of the Kupe Oil and Gas Field. The Company, however, has contracted to take 100% of 

natural gas from the field. 

Carbon costs 

 

The cost of carbon emitting by the Company's generation plant under the New Zealand 

Emissions Trading Scheme in year to 30 June 2012 was $17.5 million, an increase from $14 

million in the previous year.  

 

Ends 
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Comprehensive 
income statement

For the year ended 
30 June 2012

Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Genesis Power Limited and Subsidiaries Operating revenue

Electricity revenue 1,928,603 1,547,903 1,852,198 1,433,814

Gas revenue 235,786 189,914 235,361 189,615

Petroleum revenue 85,804 81,117 20,776 20,706

Other revenue 7 19,990 15,553 15,251 10,241

2,270,183 1,834,487 2,123,586 1,654,376

Operating expenses

Electricity purchases, transmission and distribution (1,004,901) (768,941) (939,456) (675,423)

Gas purchases and transmission (249,386) (215,676) (249,035) (215,529)

Petroleum production, marketing and distribution (35,046) (27,356) (23,985) (22,123)

Fuels consumed (288,428) (257,651) (334,101) (296,687)

Employee benefits (80,753) (79,555) (79,939) (76,180)

Other operating expenses 8 (219,023) (192,654) (208,806) (181,988)

(1,877,537) (1,541,833) (1,835,322) (1,467,930)

Earnings before net finance expense, income tax, depreciation, 
amortisation, fair value changes and other gains and losses 392,646 292,654 288,264 186,446

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 9 (152,097) (144,297) (92,620) (80,632)

Impairment of non-current assets 10 (12,369) (9,374) (12,369) (9,253)

Revaluation of generation assets 22 – (96,816) – (96,816)

Change in fair value of financial instruments 11 (11,318) (12,698) (20,961) (1,666)

Other gains (losses) 12 (3,118) 1,070 (3,504) (537)

(178,902) (262,115) (129,454) (188,904)

Profit (loss) before net finance expense and income tax 213,744 30,539 158.810 (2,458)

Finance revenue 13 2,774 3,767 24,874 31,276

Finance expense 14 (91,350) (52,394) (97,701) (56,678)

Profit (loss) before income tax 125,168 (18,088) 85,983 (27,860)

Income tax (expense) credit 15 (34,918) 1,479 (24,531) 5,504

Profit (loss) for the year 90,250 (16,609) 61,452 (22,356)

Other comprehensive income

Change in cash flow hedge reserve 32 (2,571) (1,625) (2,315) (4,653)

Change in asset revaluation reserve 22 – 394,162 – 394,162

Total other comprehensive income before tax (2,571) 392,537 (2,315) 389,509

Income tax credit (expense) relating to other comprehensive income 15 720 (109,481) 648 (108,633)

Total other comprehensive income for the year (1,851) 283,056 (1,667) 280,876

Total comprehensive income for the year 88,399 266,447 59,785 258,520

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of changes 
in equity

For the year ended 
30 June 2012

Group Note
Share capital 

$000

Asset 
revaluation 

reserve 
$000

Cash flow 
hedge reserve 

$000

Retained 
earnings 

$000
Total 

$000

Genesis Power Limited and Subsidiaries Balance as at 1 July 2010 540,565 412,087 212 492,701 1,445,565

Loss for the year – – – (16,609) (16,609)

Other comprehensive income

Change in cash flow hedge reserve 32 – – (1,625) – (1,625)

Change in asset revaluation reserve – 394,162 – – 394,162

Income tax credit (expense) relating to other comprehensive income 15 – (109,937) 456 – (109,481)

Total comprehensive income for the year – 284,225 (1,169) (16,609) 266,447

Revaluation reserve reclassified to retained earnings on disposal of assets – (1,531) – 1,531 – 

Balance as at 30 June 2011 540,565 694,781 (957) 477,623 1,712,012

Profit for the year – – – 90,250 90,250 

Other comprehensive income

Change in cash flow hedge reserve 32 – – (2,571) – (2,571)

Income tax credit (expense) relating to other comprehensive income 15 – – 720 – 720

Total comprehensive income for the year – – (1,851) 90,250 88,399

Revaluation reserve reclassified to retained earnings on disposal of assets – (549) – 549 –

Balance as at 30 June 2012 540,565 694,232 (2,808) 568,422 1,800,411
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Statement of changes 
in equity continued

For the year ended 
30 June 2012

Parent Note
Share capital 

$000

Asset 
revaluation 

reserve 
$000

Cash flow 
hedge reserve 

$000

Retained 
earnings 

$000
Total 

$000

Genesis Power Limited and Subsidiaries Balance as at 1 July 2010 540,565 412,087 227 407,800 1,360,679

Loss for the year – – – (22,356) (22,356)

Other comprehensive income

Change in cash flow hedge reserve 32 – – (4,653) – (4,653)

Change in asset revaluation reserve – 394,162 – – 394,162

Income tax credit (expense) relating to other comprehensive income 15 – (109,937) 1,304 – (108,633)

Total comprehensive income for the year – 284,225 (3,349) (22,356) 258,520

Effect of amalgamation of subsidiaries 25 –  – – 830 830

Revaluation reserve reclassified to retained earnings on disposal of assets – (1,531) – 1,531 – 

Balance as at 30 June 2011 540,565 694,781 (3,122) 387,805 1,620,029

Profit for the year – – – 61,452 61,452

Other comprehensive income

Change in cash flow hedge reserve 32 – – (2,315) – (2,315)

Income tax credit (expense) relating to other comprehensive income 15 – – 648 – 648

Total comprehensive income for the year – – (1,667) 61,452 59,785

Effect of amalgamation of subsidiaries 25 – –  – 33,989 33,989

Revaluation reserve reclassified to retained earnings on disposal of assets – (549)  – 549 –

Balance as at 30 June 2012 540,565 694,232 (4,789) 483,795 1,713,803

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance sheet As at 30 June 2012

Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Genesis Power Limited and Subsidiaries Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 19 30,185 21,108 22,116 13,876

Receivables and prepayments 20 309,843 219,306 487,152 450,750

Inventories 21 127,146 112,457 125,372 111,908

Emission units on hand 24 868 3,907 868 3,907

Derivatives 32 15,377 9,398 16,200 17,265

Total current assets 483,419 366,176 651,708 597,706

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 22 2,580,654 2,627,413 2,579,671 2,626,373

Oil and gas assets 23 429,150 462,790  –  – 

Intangible assets 24 118,232 121,438 118,232 118,485

Inventories 21  – 55,805  – 55,805

Investments in subsidiaries 25  –  – 50,573 29,753

Receivables and prepayments 20 1,171 8,228 1,171 1,367

Derivatives 32 22,913 34,952 22,979 36,668

Total non-current assets 3,152,120 3,310,626 2,772,626 2,868,451

Total assets 3,635,539 3,676,802 3,424,334 3,466,157

The Directors of Genesis Power Limited 
authorise these financial statements for issue 
on behalf of the Board.

Rt Hon Dame Jenny Shipley DNZM 
Chairman of the Board
Date: 22 August 2012

Joanna Perry MNZM 
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Date: 22 August 2012

Current liabilities

Payables and accruals 29 288,342 241,462 277,645 213,959

Tax payable 7,215 12,266 252 4,214

Borrowings 30 16,494 411,543 16,494 411,543

Provisions 31 12,925 14,156 12,925 14,156

Derivatives 32 11,425 17,676 16,559 21,095

Total current liabilities 336,401 697,103 323,875 664,967

Non-current liabilities

Payables and accruals 29 479  – 479  – 

Borrowings 30 1,002,986 806,164 1,002,986 806,164

Provisions 31 110,247 90,373 62,800 64,565

Deferred tax liability 16 320,723 318,226 255,109 255,497

Derivatives 32 64,292 52,924 65,282 54,935

Total non-current liabilities 1,498,727 1,267,687 1,386,656 1,181,161

Total liabilities 1,835,128 1,964,790 1,710,531 1,846,128

Shareholder’s equity

Share capital 18 540,565 540,565 540,565 540,565

Reserves 1,259,846 1,171,447 1,173,238 1,079,464

Total equity 1,800,411 1,712,012 1,713,803 1,620,029

Total equity and liabilities 3,635,539 3,676,802 3,424,334 3,466,157

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Cash flow statement For the year ended 
30 June 2012

Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Genesis Power Limited and Subsidiaries Cash flows from operating activities

Cash was provided from:

Receipts from customers 2,174,346 1,824,438 2,027,926 1,639,127

Interest received 2,774 3,767 2,654 3,677

2,177,120 1,828,205 2,030,580 1,642,804

Cash was applied to:

Payments to suppliers 1,692,117 1,478,360 1,649,139 1,422,765

Payments to employees 79,666 79,787 78,852 76,288

Tax paid 36,680 24,446 36,680 24,446

1,808,463 1,582,593 1,764,671 1,523,499

Net cash inflows from operating activities 368,657 245,612 265,909 119,305

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash was provided from:

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 232 296 232 296

Proceeds from disposal of associate and joint venture  – 72  –  – 

Receipts of principal from finance lease receivable 8,476 7,225  –  – 

Net advances received from subsidiaries  –  – 125,418 128,681

8,708 7,593 125,650 128,977

Cash was applied to:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 65,256 864,836 64,752 858,442

Purchase of oil and gas assets 4,669 1,007 2,104 32

Purchase of intangibles (excluding emission units) 8,238 9,687 8,237 9,712

Purchase of shares in subsidiaries  –  – 20,820  – 

78,163 875,530 95,913 868,186

Net cash inflows (outflows) from investing activities (69,455) (867,937) 29,737 (739,209)

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash was provided from:

Proceeds from borrowings  – 673,000  – 673,000

 – 673,000  – 673,000

Cash was applied to:

Repayment of borrowings 205,000  – 205,000  – 

Interest paid and other finance charges 81,664 51,424 81,601 50,938

Repayment of principal on finance lease liabilities 3,461 3,607 3,461 3,607

290,125 55,031 290,062 54,545

Net cash inflows (outflows) from financing activities (290,125) 617,969 (290,062) 618,455

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 9,077 (4,356) 5,584 (1,449)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 21,108 25,464 13,876 15,325

Cash transferred on amalgamation of subsidiary  –  – 2,656  – 

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 19 30,185 21,108 22,116 13,876

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Cash flow statement 
continued

For the year ended 
30 June 2012

Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Genesis Power Limited and Subsidiaries Profit (loss) for the year 90,250 (16,609) 61,452 (22,356)

Reconciliation of profit (loss) to net cash 
inflow from operating activities

Items classified as investing/financing activities

Net (gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 12 561 1,292 561 1,243

Net (gain) loss on disposal of joint venture 12 – (1,164) – – 

Interest and other finance charges paid 87,057 47,789 94,956 53,728

Interest received from subsidiaries 13 – – (22,220) (27,599)

Other items classified as investing/financing activities 2,517 (3,205) 2,521 (2,155)

90,135 44,712 75,818 25,217

Non-cash items

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation expense 9 152,097 144,297 92,620 80,632

Revaluation of generation assets 22 – 96,816  -  96,816

Impairment of non-current assets 10 12,369 9,374 12,369 9,253

Change in fair value of financial instruments 11 11,318 12,698 20,961 1,666

Deferred tax expense 15 3,217 (31,655) 1,051 (27,919)

Change in capital expenditure accruals 15,490 (51,015) 15,490 (56,028)

Change in rehabilitation and contractual arrangement provisions (16,404) 4,527 3,687 – 

Transfer of tax losses within the Group – – (6,636) 10,754

Effect of amalgamation of subsidiaries – – (10,808) – 

Other non-cash items – – – 328

178,087 185,042 128,734 115,502

Movements in working capital

Change in receivables and prepayments (excluding advances to 
subsidiaries and finance lease receivable) (94,921) (11,714) (102,681) (15,746)

Change in inventories 41,116 (41,532) 42,341 (41,916)

Change in emission units on hand 3,039 830 3,039 830

Change in payables and accruals 47,359 37,534 64,164 26,375

Change in tax receivable/payable (5,051) 5,731 (3,962) (13,091)

Change in provisions 18,643 41,618 (2,996) 44,490

10,185 32,467 (95) 942

Net cash inflow from operating activities 368,657 245,612 265,909 119,305
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Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 
30 June 2012

1. General information Genesis Power Limited (the “Parent”) is a 
company registered under the Companies 
Act 1993. The Parent became a State-owned 
enterprise on 16 December 1998 pursuant to 
the State-Owned Enterprises Act 1986. The 
Parent is wholly owned by Her Majesty the 
Queen in Right of New Zealand (the “Crown”). 
The liabilities of the Parent are not guaranteed 
in any way by the Crown. The Parent is an 
issuer for the purposes of the Financial 
Reporting Act 1993.

Genesis Power Limited and its subsidiaries, 
interests in associates and jointly controlled 
entities (together the “Group”) are designated 
as profit-oriented entities for financial 
reporting purposes.

The Group’s core business is located in New 
Zealand and involves the generation of 
electricity, retailing and trading of energy, and 
the development and procurement of fuel 
sources. To support these functions, the Group’s 
scope of business includes retailing and trading 
of related complementary products designed 
to support its key energy business.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with New Zealand Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice (“NZ GAAP”), 
New Zealand Equivalents to International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“NZ IFRS”) 
and other applicable New Zealand Financial 
Reporting Standards as appropriate for 
profit-oriented entities. These financial 
statements comply with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

The financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 
1993 and the Companies Act 1993, and are 
presented in New Zealand dollars rounded to 

the nearest thousand. The accounting policies 
adopted in the preparation of these financial 
statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all years 
presented, unless otherwise stated.

These financial statements are prepared under 
the historical cost convention, modified by the 
revaluation of derivatives and generation assets.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements 
requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, revenues and expenses. 

The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised, if the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of the revision and future periods if the revision 
affects both current and future periods. 

Significant areas of estimation in these financial 
statements are as follows:

Valuation of electricity derivatives 

The valuation of electricity derivatives classified 
as level three financial instruments is based 
on forecasted internally generated electricity 
price paths which incorporate a number of 
assumptions. The key assumptions used in the 
valuation and the carrying value of electricity 
derivatives classified as level three financial 
instruments is disclosed in note 33.

Valuation of rehabilitation and 
restoration provision

The financial statements include an estimate 
of the liability in relation to the abandonment 
and restoration of generation and oil and gas 
production assets sites. Such estimates are 
measured at the present value of the cash 
flows expected to settle the obligation. The 
key assumptions used in the calculation and 
the carrying value of the rehabilitation and 
restoration provision is disclosed in note 31.

Valuation of generation assets

The Group’s generation assets are carried at 
fair value. The fair value is based on the present 
value of the estimated future cash flows of 
the assets, excluding any reduction for costs 
associated with rehabilitation and restoration. 
The key assumptions used in the valuation 
and the carrying value of generation assets is 
disclosed in note 22.

Depletion of oil and gas producing assets

Depletion of oil and gas producing assets is 
based on the proven reserves to which the 
assets relate. Proven reserve estimates can 
change over time. The proven reserve estimates 
used to deplete the oil and gas producing 
assets and the carrying value of the assets is 
disclosed in note 23.

Revenue estimates for unread gas and 
electricity meters

The financial statements include an accrual for 
unread gas and electricity meter revenue at 
balance date. The accrual involves estimating 
the consumption for each unread meter based 
on the customer’s past consumption history. 
The key assumptions used in the calculation 
and the carrying value of accrued revenue are 
disclosed in note 20.
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2. Summary of accounting policies (a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include 
the Parent and its subsidiaries, associates and 
jointly controlled assets and entities. 

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which 
the Group has the power to govern the 
financial and operating policies (control). 
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date 
control is acquired. They are de-consolidated 
from the date control ceases. The acquisition 
method of accounting is used to account for 
the acquisition of subsidiaries.

Investments in subsidiaries are recognised at 
cost less impairment in the Parent’s financial 
statements. When a subsidiary is amalgamated, 
the amalgamation is performed on a line-by-
line basis on the date the amalgamation takes 
effect. The net profit of the subsidiary up to 
the date of the amalgamation is recognised 
directly in equity. All inter-entity balances are 
eliminated on amalgamation. 

Jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled entities

Where the Group invests in jointly controlled 
assets or jointly controlled entities, the 
Group’s share of revenue, expenditure, assets 
and liabilities is included in the appropriate 
categories within the Group financial statements 
on a proportionate line-by-line basis. 

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the 
Group has significant influence but not control. 
Associates are recognised in the Parent’s 
financial statements at cost and in the Group 
financial statements using the equity method 
which recognises the Group’s share of net 
profit in profit or loss and its share of post-
acquisition movements in reserves in other 
comprehensive income.

Transactions and balances eliminated on consolidation

Intercompany transactions, balances, revenue 
and expenditure between Group companies is 
eliminated on consolidation. 

(b) Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)

The financial statements are prepared on a 
GST-exclusive basis with the exception of 
receivables and payables, which include GST 
where GST has been invoiced.

(c) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of 
the consideration received or receivable net 
of prompt-payment discounts. Revenue is 
recognised when the significant risks and 
rewards of ownership have passed or when the 
service has been rendered to the customer.

(d) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in a foreign currency 
are converted at the exchange rate in effect at 
the date of the transaction. At balance date, 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are translated at the closing 
rate. Exchange gains and losses arising from 
these translations and the settlement of these 
items are recognised in profit or loss, except 
when deferred in equity where cash flow 
hedging is applied (refer to the derivatives 
accounting policy (r) below). 

(e) Finance expense

Finance expense includes interest, bank and 
facility fees, transaction costs and time value 
of money adjustments on provisions. Interest, 
bank and facility fees and transaction costs are 
recognised in profit or loss over the period of 
the borrowings using the effective interest rate 
method, unless such costs relate to funding 
capital work in progress. Time value of money 
adjustments on provisions are recognised in 
profit or loss up to the point the provision is 
used or released.

Finance expense on capital work in progress 
(qualifying assets) is capitalised during the 
construction period. The capitalisation rate used 
to determine the amount of finance expense to 
be capitalised is based on the weighted average 
finance expenses incurred by the Group. 

(f) Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year 
comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax 
is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable 
income, based on the income tax rate, adjusted 
for changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
attributable to temporary differences. Income tax 
is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognised directly in other 
comprehensive income, in which case the income 
tax is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on 
taxable income for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantially enacted at the end of 
the reporting period, together with any unpaid 
tax or adjustment to tax payable in respect of 
previous years.

Deferred tax is calculated using the balance 
sheet liability method, providing for temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided 
is based on the expected manner of realisation or 
settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially 
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

(g) Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair 
value and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost less any allowance for doubtful 
receivables. Receivables which are known to be 
uncollectible are written off. An allowance for 
doubtful receivables is established when there 
is objective evidence that the Group will not 
be able to collect amounts due. The allowance 
for doubtful receivables is the difference 
between the carrying value and the estimated 
recoverable amount. 

(h) Inventories

Inventories are recognised at the lower of cost 
and net realisable value. Cost is determined 
using the weighted average cost basis which 
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includes expenditure incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location and 
condition, including shipping and handling. Net 
realisable value is the estimated selling price 
in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Generation assets

Generation assets include land and buildings 
associated with generation assets. Generation 
assets are recognised in the balance sheet 
at their revalued amounts, being the fair 
value at the date of their revaluation, less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. The underlying assumptions 
used in the revaluation are reviewed annually 
and revaluations are performed with sufficient 
regularity, not exceeding five years, to ensure 
the carrying amount does not differ materially 
from that which would be determined using fair 
values at the balance date.

Any increase in the revaluation of individual 
generation assets is recognised in other 
comprehensive income, unless it reverses 
a revaluation decrease for the same asset 
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which 
case it is recognised in profit or loss to the 
extent of the decrease previously recognised 
in profit or loss. A decrease in carrying 
amount arising on the revaluation of individual 
generation assets is recognised in profit or 
loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, 
if any, held in the asset revaluation reserve 
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. 
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of 
the revaluation is eliminated against the gross 
carrying value of the asset so that the gross 
carrying amount after revaluation equals the 
revalued amount.

Subsequent additions to generation assets 
are recognised at cost. Cost includes the 
consideration given to acquire the asset plus 
any other costs incurred in bringing the asset 

to the location and condition necessary for 
its intended use including resource consent 
and relationship agreement costs. The cost of 
assets constructed by the Group includes the 
cost of all materials and direct labour used in 
construction, resource consent costs, finance 
expenses and an appropriate proportion of 
applicable variable and fixed overheads. 

All other categories of property, plant 
and equipment

All other categories of property, plant and 
equipment with the exception of land and 
capital work in progress are recognised at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. Land and 
capital work in progress are not depreciated.

Depreciation

For generation assets carried at fair value, their 
fair value, less any estimated residual value, 
is charged to profit or loss on a straight line 
basis over its estimated remaining useful life. 
Where a generation asset’s remaining useful life 
changes, the depreciation charge is adjusted 
prospectively. The estimated remaining 
useful lives of generation assets used in the 
depreciation calculation are as follows:

Estimated remaining useful life

Generation assets up to 80 years

For all other property, plant and equipment 
carried at cost, their cost, less any estimated 
residual value, is charged to profit or loss on a 
straight line basis over its estimated useful life. 
The estimated useful lives of different classes of 
property plant and equipment are as follows:

Estimated useful life

Buildings and improvements 10 to 50 years

Other plant and equipment 3 to 15 years

Leased plant and equipment 20 to 25 years

The estimated useful lives of assets are 
reviewed annually. An asset’s carrying amount 
is written down immediately to its recoverable 

amount if the carrying amount is greater than 
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on the disposal or retirement 
of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset. 
The gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. 
Any balance attributable to the disposed asset 
in the asset revaluation reserve is transferred to 
retained earnings.

(j) Oil and gas assets

Exploration and evaluation expenditure 

All exploration and evaluation costs, including 
directly attributable overheads, general permit 
activity, and geological and geophysical costs 
are expensed as incurred except for the costs 
of drilling exploration wells and the costs of 
acquiring new interests. The costs of drilling 
exploration wells is initially capitalised pending 
the determination of the success of the well. 
Costs are expensed immediately where the 
well does not result in a successful discovery. 
Costs incurred before the Group has obtained 
the legal rights to explore an area are expensed 
as incurred. 

Exploration and evaluation expenditure assets 
are not amortised; instead, they are assessed 
annually for indicators of impairment. Any 
impairment is recognised in profit or loss. Once 
commercial approval has been obtained for 
the development of a project, the accumulated 
expenditure in relation to the project is 
transferred to oil and gas development assets.

Oil and gas producing assets

Oil and gas producing assets include costs 
associated with the production station 
transferred from development expenditure 
and mining licences. Depletion of oil and gas 
producing assets is based on the amount of 
units produced during the period in comparison 
to the total expected to be produced from 
the proven reserves. Proven reserves are the 

2. Summary of accounting policies continued



12 FINANCIAL REPORTING

estimated quantities of oil and gas which 
geological and engineering data demonstrate 
with reasonable certainty to be recoverable 
in future years from known reservoirs, under 
existing economic and operating conditions. 
Proven reserves are defined as those which have 
a 90 per cent likelihood of being delivered.  
The proven oil and gas reserves used to deplete 
the oil and gas producing assets are disclosed 
in note 23.

Other oil and gas assets

Other oil and gas assets include land, buildings, 
storage facilities, a sales pipeline, motor 
vehicles and the ongoing costs of continuing 
to develop reserves for production. The cost 
of other oil and gas assets less any estimated 
residual value is charged to the profit or loss 
on a straight line basis over its estimated useful 
life. The estimated useful lives of other oil and 
gas assets are as follows:

Estimated useful life

Buildings 50 years

Storage facilities 25 years

Sales pipeline 25 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

(k) Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost 
of a business combination over the fair value 
of the Group’s share of the net identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of 
the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date 
of acquisition. Goodwill on the acquisition of 
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. 
Goodwill on the acquisition of associates 
is included in the investment in associates. 
Goodwill is assessed as having an indefinite 
useful life and is not amortised but is subject to 
annual impairment testing or whenever there 
are indications of impairment.

Computer software

Computer software are assets with finite 

lives. These assets are recognised at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses. Amortisation is charged to profit or 
loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated 
useful life of the asset from the date it is 
available for use. The estimated useful life is 
between one and four years. 

Emission units

Emission units are purchased (or granted by 
the Crown) to meet the Group’s emission 
obligation. Emission units on hand and 
receivable are initially recognised at fair value. 
Fair value is cost in the case of purchased 
units or the initial market value in the case 
of government-granted units and units 
receivable from third parties. Emission units 
receivable from Group entities are recognised 
using the weighted average cost of emission 
obligations incurred by the Group on the date 
the receivable is recognised. The difference 
between cost and fair value of government-
granted units is treated as revenue. Emission 
units are not revalued subsequent to initial 
recognition. Emission units receivable are 
accounted for in the period in which they are 
earned within receivables and prepayments and 
are transferred to intangibles when the emission 
units are received. Emission units on hand are 
assessed as having an indefinite useful life and 
are not amortised but are subject to annual 
impairment testing or whenever there are 
indicators of impairment.

Naming rights

Naming rights are assets with finite lives. These 
assets are recognised at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life 
of the asset from the date it is available for use. 
The useful life is based on the contract period 
which ranges between one and 15 years.

(l) Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are 
not subject to amortisation and are tested 

annually for impairment. Assets that are subject 
to depletion, depreciation or amortisation 
are reviewed for impairment annually, or 
whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. If an asset’s carrying value exceeds 
its recoverable amount, the difference is 
recognised as an impairment loss in profit 
or loss.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset’s fair value less costs to sell, and the 
asset’s value in use. In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value at a rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value 
of money. This discount rate is adjusted for the 
risks specific to the asset where the estimated 
cash flows have not been adjusted.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, 
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for 
which there are separately identifiable cash 
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial 
assets other than goodwill that have been 
impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of 
the impairment at each reporting date.

Where an impairment loss subsequently 
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 
is increased to the revised estimate of its 
recoverable amount, but only to the extent 
the carrying amount of the asset at the date 
the impairment is reversed does not exceed 
what the amortised cost would have been 
had the impairment not been recognised. 
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
in profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant 
asset is carried at fair value, in which case the 
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a 
revaluation increase. Impairment of goodwill is 
not reversed.

(m) Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are recognised when 
the Group becomes obligated to make future 
payments resulting from the purchase of goods 
or services, and are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost.

2. Summary of accounting policies continued
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(n) Employee benefits

A liability for employee benefits (wages and 
salaries, annual and long-service leave and 
employee incentives) is recognised when it 
is probable that settlement will be required 
and the amount is capable of being measured 
reliably. Provisions made in respect of employee 
benefits are measured using the remuneration 
rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 

(o) Emission obligations

Emission obligations are recognised as a liability 
when the Group incurs the emission obligation. 
Emission units payable to third parties are 
recognised at the average cost of emission 
units on hand up to the amount of emission 
units on hand at the recognition date. Where 
the emission obligation exceeds the level of 
units on hand, the excess obligation over the 
units on hand is measured at the contract 
price where forward contracts exist or the 
market price for any obligation not covered by 
units on hand or forward contracts. Emission 
units payable to Group entities are recognised 
using the weighted average cost of emission 
obligations incurred by the Group on the date 
the obligation is recognised.

(p) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, 
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 
Any difference between the proceeds (net of 
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is 
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the 
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities 
unless the Group has an unconditional right to 
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 
months after the balance date.

(q) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has 
a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable 

that the Group will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation. The amount 
recognised as the provision is the best estimate 
of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period 
taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision 
is measured using the cash flows estimated to 
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount 
is the present value of those cash flows.

(r) Derivatives

The Group has the following derivatives:

•	 Interest	rate	swaps

•	 Foreign	exchange	swaps	and	options

•	 Electricity	swaps	and	options

•	 Oil	swaps	and	options

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value 
on the date a derivative contract is entered into 
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair 
value. The method of recognising the resulting 
gain or loss depends on whether the derivative 
is designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, 
the nature of the item being hedged. 

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges 
are classified as:

•	 Cash	flow	hedges	where	the	Group	hedges	
the exposure to variability in cash flows 
that is attributable either to a particular risk 
associated with a recognised asset or liability 
or to a highly probable forecast transaction; 
or

•	 Fair	value	hedges	where	the	Group	hedges	
the exposure to changes in fair value of a 
recognised asset or liability.

The Group documents at the inception of 
the transaction the relationship between the 
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well 
as its risk-management objective and strategy 
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The 
Group also documents its assessment, both at 
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of 
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging 

transactions have been and will continue to 
be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair 
values or cash flows of hedged items.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair 
value of derivatives that are designated and 
qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in 
other comprehensive income and accumulates 
in the cash flow hedge reserve. The gain or loss 
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts accumulated in other comprehensive 
income are reclassified to profit or loss 
in the period when the hedged item will 
affect the profit or loss. However, when the 
forecast transaction that is hedged results in 
the recognition of a non-financial asset (for 
example, inventory) or liability, the gains and 
losses previously deferred in the cash flow 
hedge reserve are reclassified from the cash 
flow hedge reserve and included in the initial 
measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, 
terminated or exercised, or when a hedge no 
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, 
the cumulative gain or loss at that time remains 
in the cash flow hedge reserve and is reclassified 
to profit or loss when the transaction occurs. If 
the forecast transaction is no longer expected 
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss recognised 
in the cash flow hedge reserve is reclassified 
immediately to profit or loss.

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are 
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are 
recorded in profit or loss, together with any 
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or 
liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Derivatives that do not qualify for 
hedge accounting

Changes in the fair value of any derivatives 
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2. Summary of accounting policies continued
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(s) Financial instruments

For financial reporting purposes, the Group 
designates its financial instruments into the 
following categories:

Loans and receivables

•	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents

•	 Receivables

Financial instruments designated at fair value 
through profit or loss

•	 Foreign	exchange	swaps

•	 Interest	rate	swaps

•	 Electricity	swaps

Financial instruments held for trading 
(derivatives not designated as hedges)

•	 Foreign	exchange	options

•	 Electricity	swaps	and	options

•	 Oil	swaps	and	options

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

•	 Payables

•	 Borrowings

(t) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever 
the terms of the lease transfer substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership to 
the lessee. All other leases are classified as 
operating leases. When assets are leased 
under a finance lease, the present value of the 
minimum lease payments is recognised as 

either a payable or receivable in the balance 
sheet. Repayments are allocated between the 
capital and interest over the term of the lease 
in order to reflect a constant periodic rate of 
return on the net investment outstanding in 
respect of the lease. Payments made under 
operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
Receipts from operating leases are recognised 
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

(u) Statement of cash flows

The following definitions are used in the 
statement of cash flows:

Operating activities

Operating activities include all transactions 
and other events that are not investing or 
financing activities.

Investing activities

Investing activities are those activities relating 
to the acquisition, holding and disposal of 
property, plant and equipment, oil and gas 
assets, intangible assets (excluding emission 
units) and investments.

Financing activities

Financing activities are those activities that 
result in changes in the size and composition of 
the capital structure of the Group. They include 
both equity and debt not falling within the 

definition of cash. Dividends and interest paid in 
relation to the capital structure are included in 
financing activities.

Taxation credits (debits) disclosed in operating 
activities include the net amount of GST paid/
received during the year and net advances 
and loans to subsidiaries disclosed in investing 
activities include the net amount paid/received 
during the year. GST and advances and loans 
to subsidiaries are disclosed on a net basis as 
the gross amounts do not provide meaningful 
information for financial statement purposes. 

(v) Capital and reserves

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record 
movements in the fair value of generation 
assets in accordance with the property, plant 
and equipment accounting policy.

Cash flow hedging reserve

The cash flow hedge reserve comprises 
the effective portion of the cumulative net 
change in the fair value of cash flow hedging 
instruments related to hedge transactions that 
have not yet occurred.

(w) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of dividends 
declared on or before the end of the financial 
year but not distributed at balance date.

2. Summary of accounting policies continued

3. Comparatives Reclassification of inventories 

Coal inventory on hand that is forecasted to be 
used more than 12 months after the reporting 
date has been disclosed as a non-current asset. 
Previously, all coal inventory has been disclosed 
as a current asset. As a result of this change, the 
Group comparatives have been reclassified to 
$112.5 million current asset and $55.8 million 
non-current asset (Parent: $111.9 million current 
asset and $55.8 non-current asset).

Reclassification of line and connection charges 
and ancillary expenditure

Line and connection charges and ancillary 
expenditure directly related to electricity 
revenues have previously been reported as 
other operating expenses. Given the nature 
of these expenses, it is considered to be more 
informative to disclose them as electricity 
purchases, transmission and distribution 
expenses. As a result of this change, the 

comparatives have been reclassified. This has 
resulted in an increase in electricity purchases 
and transmission and distribution expenses and 
a decrease in other operating expenses for the 
Group of $24.8 million (Parent: $24.2 million).

Reclassification of emission units on hand

Emission units on hand that are forecasted to 
be used within 12 months after the reporting 
date have been disclosed as a current asset. 
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Previously, all emission units on hand were 
disclosed as a non-current asset within 
intangibles. As a result of this change, the 
Group comparatives have been reclassified 
to $3.9 million current asset and $121.4 million 
non-current asset (Parent: $3.9 million current 
asset and $118.5 million non-current asset).

Reclassification of proceeds from sale 
of tax deposits

Proceeds from sale of tax deposits has 
previously been disclosed separately in 
operating activities. Given the nature of the 
cash flow, it is considered more informative to 
include it in tax paid. As a result of this change, 
the comparatives for the sale of tax deposits 
and tax paid for the Parent and Group have 
decreased by $3.5 million.

Reclassification of proceeds and payments from 
the sale and purchase of emission units

Proceeds and payments from the sale and 
purchase of emission units have previously 
been disclosed as investing activities. Given 
the nature of these cash flows, it is considered 
more informative to disclose them as operating 
activities. As a result of this change, the 
comparatives for proceeds from disposal of 
intangibles and purchase of intangibles for 
Group and Parent have decreased by $2 million 
and receipts from customers and payments to 
suppliers have increased by $2 million. Other 
items classified as investing/financing activities 
and other non-cash items in the reconciliation 
of profit (loss) to net cash inflows from operating 
activities have also been reclassified by 
$1 million and $0.2 million respectively for the 
Parent and Group as a result of this change 

and a new line inserted for changes in emission 
units on hand of $0.8 million.

Cost and accumulated depreciation, 
depletion and impairment for exploration 
and evaluation expenditure

The comparative cost and accumulated 
depreciation, depletion and impairment of 
exploration and evaluation expenditure for the 
Group and Parent as reported in note 23 have 
been revised to align with the disclosures made 
in the current year. The cost and accumulated 
depreciation, depletion and impairment has 
increased by $18.5 million for the Group and has 
decreased by $11.4 million for the Parent. There is 
no impact on profit or loss.

A third balance sheet has not been disclosed as 
the reclassifications discussed above do not have 
an impact on the opening balance sheet.

4. Adoption of new and revised accounting 
standards, interpretations and amendments

There have been no new and revised accounting standards, interpretations or amendments effective during the year which have a material impact on 
the Group’s accounting policies or disclosures.

5. Accounting standards, interpretations and 
amendments in issue not yet effective

NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is effective for 
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2015. The Group is therefore required 
to adopt this standard by 30 June 2016. The 
standard is not expected to have a material 
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

NZ IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The Group 
is therefore required to adopt this standard by 
30 June 2014. NZ IFRS 10 introduces a single 
basis for consolidation for all entities regardless 
of the type of investment it is. The standard is 
not expected to have a material impact on the 
Group’s financial statements.

NZ IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements is effective for 
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2013. The Group is therefore required 
to adopt this standard by 30 June 2014. 
NZ IFRS 11 classifies joint arrangements as either 

joint operations or joint ventures. NZ IFRS 11 
requires joint operators to recognise assets, 
liabilities, revenue and expenses in relation to 
their interest in the joint operation whereas joint 
ventures are required to be accounted for using 
the equity method. The initial assessment by 
the Group indicates that the jointly controlled 
assets and entities held by the Group (refer 
to note 27) are likely to be classified as joint 
operations under NZ IFRS 11. If this is the case 
the standard is unlikely to have a material 
impact on the Group’s financial statements. 

NZ IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other 
Entities is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The Group 
is therefore required to adopt this standard by 
30 June 2014. NZ IFRS 12 introduces extensive 
new disclosure requirements. The Group has yet 
to determine the impact this standard will have 
on the financial statement disclosures.

NZ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement is effective 
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2013. The Group is therefore required 
to adopt this standard by 30 June 2014. NZ IFRS 
13 establishes a single framework for measuring 
fair value which it applies to both financial and 
non-financial items measured at fair value. It 
also introduces a number of new disclosure 
requirements. The Group has two categories of 
assets and liabilities carried at fair value: being 
generation assets and derivatives. The Group has 
yet to determine the impact this standard will have 
on these balances and associated disclosures.

All other standards, interpretations and 
amendments approved but not yet effective in 
the current year are either not applicable to the 
Group or are not expected to have a material 
impact on the Group’s financial statements 
and therefore have been excluded from the 
discussion above.

3. Comparatives continued



16 FINANCIAL REPORTING

6. Segment reporting

For management purposes, the Group 
is currently organised into four segments 
as follows:

Segment Activity

Customer experience (previously called ‘Retail’) Supply of energy (electricity, gas and LPG) to end-user customers as well as related services.

Energy management (previously called ‘Production’) Generation and trading of electricity and related products. The segment includes electricity sales to the wholesale 
electricity market, derivatives entered into to fix the price of electricity, and wholesale gas and coal sales.

Oil and gas Exploration, development, production and sale of gas, LPG and light oil.

Corporate Head office functions including new generation investigation and development, fuel management, 
information systems, human resources, finance, corporate relations, property management, legal, corporate 
governance and the finance lease receivable relating to the Kinleith cogeneration plant. Corporate revenue is 
made up of finance lease income, property rental and miscellaneous income.

The segments are based on the different products and services offered by the Group. No operating segments have been aggregated.

Year ended 30 June 2012 Group

Customer 
experience 

$000

Energy 
management 

$000
Oil and gas 

$000
Corporate 

$000

Inter-segment 
items 
$000

Total 
$000

Operating revenue

Electricity revenue 1,081,485 1,318,946 – – (471,828) 1,928,603

Gas revenue 121,956 162,043 48,351 – (96,564) 235,786

Petroleum revenue – – 85,804 – – 85,804

Other revenue 3,922 10,825 102 5,141 – 19,990

Total revenue 1,207,363 1,491,814 134,257 5,141 (568,392) 2,270,183

Operating expenses

Electricity purchases, transmission and distribution (895,762) (580,967) – – 471,828 (1,004,901)

Gas purchases and transmission (118,802) (181,470) – – 50,886 (249,386)

Petroleum production, marketing and distribution – – (35,046) – – (35,046)

Fuel consumed – (334,106) – – 45,678 (288,428)

Employee benefits (29,119) (30,869) – (20,765) – (80,753)

Other operating costs (110,342) (87,532) (4,299) (16,850) – (219,023)

Earnings before net finance expense, income tax, depreciation, 
amortisation, fair value changes and other gains and losses 53,338 276,870 94,912 (32,474) – 392,646

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation (4,890) (77,486) (56,297) (13,424) – (152,097)

Impairment of non-current assets – (12,145) (24) (200) – (12,369)

Change in fair value of financial instruments – (18,716) 9,643 (2,245) – (11,318)

Other gains (losses) – (2,470) 387 (1,035) – (3,118)

Profit (loss) before net finance expense and income tax 48,448 166,053 48,621 (49,378) – 213,744

Finance revenue 67 – 110 2,597 – 2,774

Finance expense (480) (3,413) (1,549) (85,908) – (91,350)

Profit (loss) before income tax 48,035 162,640 47,182 (132,689) – 125,168

Other segment information

Capital expenditure 4,219 40,800 23,252 11,350 – 79,621
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6. Segment reporting continued
Group

Customer 
experience 

$000

Energy 
management 

$000
Oil and gas 

$000
Corporate 

$000

Inter-segment 
items 
$000

Total 
$000

 Year ended 30 June 2011 Operating revenue

Electricity revenue 1,079,897 954,329 – – (486,323) 1,547,903

Gas revenue 102,366 128,738 40,376 – (81,566) 189,914

Petroleum revenue – – 81,117 – – 81,117

Other revenue 4,393 5,477 (178) 5,861 – 15,553

Total revenue 1,186,656 1,088,544 121,315 5,861 (567,889) 1,834,487

Operating expenses

Electricity purchases, transmission and distribution (895,641) (359,623) – – 486,323 (768,941)

Gas purchases and transmission (100,796) (157,410) – – 42,530 (215,676)

Petroleum production, marketing and distribution – – (27,356) – – (27,356)

Fuel consumed – (296,687) – – 39,036 (257,651)

Employee benefits (32,350) (29,057) – (18,148) – (79,555)

Other operating costs (103,228) (68,815) (2,010) (18,601) – (192,654)

Earnings before net finance expense, income tax, depreciation, 
amortisation, fair value changes and other gains and losses 54,641 176,952 91,949 (30,888) – 292,654

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation (6,660) (66,065) (59,823) (11,749) – (144,297)

Impairment of non-current assets (121) (9,241) (12) – – (9,374)

Revaluation of generation assets – (96,816) – – – (96,816)

Change in fair value of financial instruments – (1,649) (11,072) 23 – (12,698)

Other gains (losses) (49) (974) 1,924 169 – 1,070

Profit (loss) before net finance expense and income tax 47,811 2,207 22,966 (42,445) – 30,539

Finance revenue 1,409 – 84 2,274 – 3,767

Finance expense (834) (3,923) (1,656) (45,981) – (52,394)

Profit (loss) before income tax 48,386 (1,716) 21,394 (86,152) – (18,088)

Other segment information 

Capital expenditure 2,470 908,277 874 11,824 – 923,445

Inter-segment revenue
Sales between segments is based on transfer prices developed in the context of long-term contracts. 

Geographic information
All business segments operate within New Zealand.

Major customer information
The Group has no individual customers that account for 10 per cent or more of the Group's external revenue (2011: none).
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7. Other revenue Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Other operating revenue 12,727 7,673 12,727 7,673

Finance and operating lease income 5,923 6,353 1,234 878

Government grants 67 198 67 198

Miscellaneous income 1,273 1,329 1,223 1,492

19,990 15,553 15,251 10,241

8. Other operating expenses Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Other operating expenses include:

Auditor's remuneration:

– Audit services (Deloitte)** 452 382 452 382

– Other assurance services (Deloitte)* 51 96 51 96

Audit services (KPMG) – 37 – 37

Other assurance services (Grant Thornton)† 6 3 6 3

Bad debts 8,501 8,627 8,191 8,368

Directors' fees 534 591 534 591

Allowance for doubtful receivables 20 (1,884) (1,153) (2,037) (1,271)

Donations 229 921 229 921

Employee benefits expense – defined contributions 2,566 2,057 2,566 2,057

Inventory write-downs 928 163 928 163

Rental expenses on operating leases 8,203 8,303 7,980 7,939

**The half-year review fee is included in the audit services fee for Deloitte disclosed above.
* During the year other assurance services provided by Deloitte related to the Global Reporting Initiative (‘GRI’) report and Trustee reporting (2011: Corporate Social 

Responsibility (‘CSR’) report, the capital bond prospectus and Trustee reporting).

† During the current and prior year, other assurance services provided by Grant Thornton related to the audit of the bond registers. 

9. Depreciation, depletion and amortisation Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 22 80,373 68,791 80,259 68,572

Depreciation and depletion of oil and gas assets 23 56,297 59,823 – – 

Amortisation of intangibles 24 12,462 12,265 12,361 12,060

Amortisation of finance lease receivable reset adjustment 2,965 3,418 – – 

152,097 144,297 92,620 80,632
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10. Impairment of non-current assets Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Impairment of property, plant and equipment 22 12,345 9,362 12,345 9,241

Impairment (reversal) of oil and gas assets 23 24 12 24 32

Impairment (reversal) of intercompany loans and investments  – – – (20)

12,369 9,374 12,369 9,253

Impairment of property, plant and equipment relates to expenditure of a capital nature on Huntly Units 1 to 4 and 6 included in the Energy 
Management segment. The expenditure is immediately impaired when incurred as the fair value of these Units is nil (refer to note 22).

Impairment of oil and gas assets in the prior year relates to the exploration and evaluation assets relating to Mangatoa gas and condensate field 
which was not economic to develop further. The amount written off represents capitalised exploration expenditure on that field to date and includes 
allowances for restoration and rehabilitation.

11. Change in fair value of financial instruments Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Change in fair value of derivatives 32 (7,980) (12,698) (17,623) (1,666)

Fair value interest rate risk adjustment on borrowings 30 (3,338) – (3,338) – 

(11,318) (12,698) (20,961) (1,666)

12. Other gains (losses) Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Net gain (loss) on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

– Net realised foreign exchange gain (loss) (830) 1,067 (1,166) 297

– Net unrealised foreign exchange gain (loss) 52 131 2 409

Other gains (losses):

– Net gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (561) (1,292) (561) (1,243)

– Net gain (loss) on disposal of emission units (1,779) – (1,779) – 

– Net gain (loss) on disposal of joint venture 27 – 1,164 – – 

(3,118) 1,070 (3,504) (537)

13. Finance revenue Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Interest from other loans and receivables and short-term deposits 2,774 3,767 2,654 3,677

Interest from subsidiaries 28 – – 22,220 27,599

2,774 3,767 24,874 31,276
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14. Finance expense Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Interest on borrowings (excluding capital bonds) 61,281 42,055 61,281 42,055

Interest on capital bonds 23,414 3,592 23,414 3,592

Interest on finance lease liabilities 819 1,125 819 1,125

Interest on other loans and payables 234 465 222 461

Interest on advances from subsidiaries 28 – – 7,962 6,425

Total interest expense 85,748 47,237 93,698 53,658

Other finance charges 1,762 985 1,711 503

Time value of money adjustments on provisions 31 4,293 4,605 2,745 2,950

91,803 52,827 98,154 57,111

Capitalised finance expenses 22 (453) (433) (453) (433)

91,350 52,394 97,701 56,678

Weighted average capitalisation rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

15. Income tax Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Income tax expense (credit) Current tax

– Current year 31,133 30,516 22,623 23,292

– Under (over) provided in prior years 568 (340) 857 (877)

Deferred tax

– Current year (excluding change in tax rate) 5,066 (33,063) 2,604 (28,848)

– Change in tax rate – 2,132 – 1,959

– Under (over) provided in prior years (1,849) (724) (1,553) (1,030)

Income tax expense (credit) 34,918 (1,479) 24,531 (5,504)

Current tax 31,701 30,176 23,480 22,415

Deferred tax 16 3,217 (31,655) 1,051 (27,919)

34,918 (1,479) 24,531 (5,504)

Reconciliation of income tax expense 
(credit) on pre-tax accounting profit to 
income tax expense (credit)

Profit (loss) before income tax 125,168 (18,088) 85,983 (27,860)

Income tax at 28% (2011: 30%) 35,047 (5,426) 24,075 (8,358)

Tax effect of adjustments:

– Change in corporate tax rate – 2,132 – 1,959

– Under (over) provided in prior years (1,281) (1,064) (696) (1,907)

– Removal of tax depreciation on buildings – 1,282 – 1,219

– Non taxable/deductible items 1,152 1,597 1,152 1,583

34,918 (1,479) 24,531 (5,504)
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15. Income tax continued The 2010 Budget contained two provisions which had an impact on the Group and Parent's 2011 tax expense, namely:

– A decrease in the corporate income tax rate from 30 per cent to 28 per cent, effective from 1 July 2011. As a result of this change, deferred tax 
which was not expected to crystallise before 1 July 2011 was restated to 28 per cent.

– The removal of tax depreciation on buildings with estimated useful lives of 50 years or more. The Group is no longer able to claim tax depreciation 
on buildings from 1 July 2011. This resulted in an increase in deferred tax liability in respect of buildings completed before May 2010.

Income tax recognised directly in other 
comprehensive income

Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Cash flow hedges 32 (720) (456) (648) (1,304)

Revaluation of generation assets – 109,937 – 109,937

16 (720) 109,481 (648) 108,633

Imputation credits Imputation credits available for use in subsequent reporting periods 294,505 252,755 290,644 231,478

16. Deferred tax liability
Group Note

Property, plant 
and equipment 

$000

Oil and gas 
assets 
$000

Provisions 
$000

Finance lease 
liabilities 

$000
Other 
$000

Total 
$000

Balance as at 1 July 2010 304,063 (34,502) (14,742) (6,602) (7,817) 240,400

Amount recognised in profit or loss 15 614 (16,483) (13,601) 493 (2,678) (31,655)

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 15 109,937 – – – (456) 109,481

Balance as at 30 June 2011 414,614 (50,985) (28,343) (6,109) (10,951) 318,226

Amount recognised in profit or loss 15 (1,208) 14,926 (5,792) 559 (5,268) 3,217

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 15 – – – – (720) (720)

Balance as at 30 June 2012 413,406 (36,059) (34,135) (5,550) (16,939) 320,723

Parent Note

Property, plant 
and equipment 

$000
Provisions 

$000

Finance lease 
liabilities 

$000
Other 
$000

Total 
$000

Balance as at 1 July 2010 196,846 (6,688) (6,602) (8,773) 174,783

Amount recognised in profit or loss 15 (15,109) (11,429) 493 (1,874) (27,919)

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 15 109,937 – – (1,304) 108,633

Balance as at 30 June 2011 291,674 (18,117) (6,109) (11,951) 255,497

Amount recognised in profit or loss 15 7,859 267 559 (7,634) 1,051

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 15 – – – (648) (648)

Effect of amalgamation of subsidiaries (50) – – (741) (791)

Balance as at 30 June 2012 299,483 (17,850) (5,550) (20,974) 255,109

The amounts shown as recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income includes the change in tax rate and the change in tax 
depreciation rules on buildings.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities 

Taxable temporary differences in relation to investments in subsidiaries, for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised, amounts to 
$25.7 million (2011: $30.8 million).
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17. Dividends Due to the acquisition of Tekapo A and B power stations in June 2011, no dividends have been paid or declared during the year (2011: nil).   

18. Share capital The share capital is represented by 540,565,000 (2011: 540,565,000) ordinary shares authorised, issued and fully paid. All shares have equal voting 
rights and share equally in dividends and any surplus on winding up. The shares have no par value. 

19. Cash and cash equivalents Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Cash at bank and on hand 23,085 19,108 15,016 11,876

Short-term deposits 7,100 2,000 7,100 2,000

30,185 21,108 22,116 13,876

20. Receivables and prepayments Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Trade receivables 223,042 140,749 218,417 131,026

Accrued revenue for unread gas and electricity meters 73,368 64,404 73,368 57,318

Allowance for doubtful receivables (7,937) (9,718) (7,937) (9,244)

288,473 195,435 283,848 179,100

Net advances to (from) subsidiaries 28 – – 193,006 259,481

Finance lease receivable 6,861 18,302 – – 

Emission units receivable 2,937 6,266 2,937 6,266

Other receivables 334 472 192 243

Prepayments 12,409 7,059 8,340 7,027

Total 311,014 227,534 488,323 452,117

Current 309,843 219,306 487,152 450,750

Non-current 1,171 8,228 1,171 1,367

Total 311,014 227,534 488,323 452,117

Estimating accrued revenue for unread gas 
and electricity meters

The key assumptions used to calculate the 
accrual for unread gas and electricity meters are 
volume and price. Where possible, the Group 
estimates the volume of gas and electricity 
consumed since the last meter reading up to 
balance date based on the volume recorded in 
the last two actual meter readings. The accrual 
is then compared to a sample of billings post-
balance date and adjusted to reflect seasonal 

changes in consumption. The accrual is also 
compared to electricity purchases and line 
losses for consistency. Given the accrual involves 
estimating the volume of gas and electricity 
consumed, actual invoices could be materially 
different to the accrual recognised at balance 
date. If the volume estimated at balance date 
was to increase or decrease by 15 per cent, the 
accrual would increase or decrease by $10.8 
million. While a change in volume estimates 

would have an impact on accrued revenue, 
it would also have an impact on accrued 
expenses. There have been no significant 
changes in the assumptions used to calculate 
the accrual in comparison to the prior year.

Net advances to (from) subsidiaries

Refer to note 28 for details regarding the 
nature, terms and conditions attached to (from) 
the advances to subsidiaries.
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20. Receivables and prepayments continued Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Movement in the allowance for 
doubtful receivables

Balance at 1 July (9,718) (10,628) (9,244) (10,273)

Amounts written off (recovered) during the year (262) 44 (889) 45

(Increase) decrease in allowance recognised in expenditure 8 1,884 1,153 2,037 1,271

(Increase) decrease in allowance recognised in other revenue 159 (287) 159 (287)

Balance at 30 June (7,937) (9,718) (7,937) (9,244)

Changes in the allowance for occupier debt is recognised in other revenue in profit or loss. All other allowances for doubtful receivables is recognised 
in the allowance for doubtful receivables expense within other operating expenses in profit or loss. 

The total value of individually impaired receivables included in the allowance for doubtful receivables was $1.6 million for the Group and $1.6 million 
for the Parent (2011: $1.7 million and $1.2 million respectively).
Receivables past due but not impaired

Included in trade receivables are receivables that are past due but not impaired. These relate to customers who pay outside normal commercial terms 
and for whom there is no recent history of default. Below is the value of receivables past due that have not been impaired or provided for in the 
allowance for doubtful receivables:

Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Age category

30 – 60 days 2,411 3,075 2,411 2,664

60 – 90 days 706 751 706 702

>90 days 1,679 2,713 1,679 2,642

Total receivables past due but not impaired or provided for 4,796 6,539 4,796 6,008

Finance lease receivable

On 1 April 1999, Kinleith Cogeneration Limited (a subsidiary company) purchased a finance lease receivable from the Electricity Corporation of 
New Zealand (“ECNZ”) at book value as at that date. The lease related to a 15-year lease of a cogeneration plant. The Group undertook a review of 
the net asset values at the time of acquisition. This review resulted in an increase in the value of the finance lease receivable by $38.2 million, known 
as a reset adjustment. Since acquisition date, the reset adjustment has been amortised to profit or loss over the remaining term of the lease, at a 
rate that results in the net investment in the finance lease approximating fair value. The amortisation of the reset adjustment is disclosed in note 9. 
The lease is due to expire in January 2013.
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20. Receivables and prepayments continued Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Gross investment in finance lease:

Not later than one year 7,639 12,857

Later than one year and not later than five years – 7,546

7,639 20,403

Unearned finance revenue (2,033) (6,321)

Present value of future minimum lease receipts 5,606 14,082

Unamortised finance lease receivable reset adjustment 1,255 4,220

Net investment in finance lease 6,861 18,302

The present value of future minimum lease receipts may be analysed as follows:

Not later than one year 5,606 8,475

Later than one year and not later than five years – 5,607

Present value of future minimum lease receipts 5,606 14,082

The net investment in finance lease may be analysed as follows:

Not later than one year 6,861 11,441

Later than one year and not later than five years – 6,861

Net investment in finance lease 6,861 18,302

Impairment of emission units receivable

During the year, the Group wrote down the value of its emission units receivable by $6.6 million (2011: nil) to reflect the net recoverable value of 
the asset. The Group’s accounting policy for emission obligations is to recognise the liability at the average cost of its emission units on hand and 
receivable; consequently, the Group wrote down its emission obligation by the same amount. The write-down of both the emission units on hand 
and receivable, and the emission obligation was offset in the profit and loss as this reflects the substance of the transaction. There was no overall 
impact on net profit as a result of the write-down.

21. Inventories Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Fuel 105,995 148,643 105,995 148,643

Petroleum products 1,801 573 27 24

Consumables and spare parts 19,350 19,046 19,350 19,046

Total 127,146 168,262 125,372 167,713

Current 127,146 112,457 125,372 111,908

Non-current – 55,805 – 55,805

Total 127,146 168,262 125,372 167,713

Fuel inventories consist mainly of coal used in electricity production. The amount of fuel inventories (excluding natural gas) expensed during the year 
was $132.6 million (2011: $52.3 million).

Petroleum products consist of LPG and light crude oil held for resale, produced from the Kupe production facility. The amount of petroleum products 
expensed during the year was $18.8 million (2011: $18.9 million).

Consumables and spare parts are held to service or repair operating plant. Consumables and spare parts relating to Huntly Units 1 to 4 and 6 are 
impaired when incurred as the fair value of these Units is nil. During the year, $0.9 million (2011: $0.2 million) of consumables and spare parts relating to 
Huntly were impaired.
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22. Property, plant and equipment

Group Note

Generation 
assets 
$000

Buildings and 
improvements 

$000

Other 
property, plant 
and equipment 

$000

Leased plant 
and equipment 

$000

Capital work 
in progress 

$000
Total 

$000

Carrying value at 1 July 2010 1,424,708 1,352 22,277 2,063 45,195 1,495,595

Additions 820,609 – – – 95,407 916,016

Revaluation gains (losses) 297,346 – – – – 297,346

Capitalised finance expenses 14 – – – – 433 433

Transfer to (from) capital work in progress 61,334 333 8,938 – (70,605) – 

Transfer to oil and gas assets 23 – – (2,237) – – (2,237)

Disposals (1,394) – (193) – – (1,587)

Impairment 10 – – – (2,063) (7,299) (9,362)

Depreciation expense 9 (61,907) (48) (6,836) – – (68,791)

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 2,540,696 1,637 21,949 – 63,131 2,627,413

Additions – – – – 47,233 47,233

Capitalised finance expenses 14 – – – – 453 453

Change in rehabilitation and contractual 
arrangement assets (927) – – – – (927)

Transfer to (from) capital work in progress 66,944 – 15,960 – (82,904) – 

Disposals (800) – – – – (800)

Impairment 10 (12,345) – – – – (12,345)

Depreciation expense 9 (73,801) (47) (6,525) – – (80,373)

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 2,519,767 1,590 31,384 – 27,913 2,580,654

Summary of cost and accumulated depreciation 
and impairment

As at 30 June 2011

Cost – 2,024 73,031 – 7,827 82,882

Fair value 2,540,696 – – – 55,304 2,596,000

Accumulated depreciation and impairment – (387) (51,082) – – (51,469)

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 2,540,696 1,637 21,949 – 63,131 2,627,413

As at 30 June 2012

Cost – 2,024 88,963 – 6,802 97,789

Fair value 2,605,041 – – – 21,111 2,626,152

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (85,274) (434) (57,579) – – (143,287)

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 2,519,767 1,590 31,384 – 27,913 2,580,654
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22. Property, plant and equipment continued

Parent Note

Generation 
assets 
$000

Buildings and 
improvements 

$000

Other 
property, plant 
and equipment 

$000

Leased plant 
and equipment 

$000

Capital work 
in progress 

$000
Total 

$000

Carrying value at 1 July 2010 1,424,708 1,352 20,043 2,063 45,195 1,493,361

Additions 820,609 – – – 93,975 914,584

Revaluation gains (losses) 297,346 – – – – 297,346

Capitalised finance expenses 14 – – – – 433 433

Transfer to (from) capital work in progress 61,334 333 8,105 – (69,772) – 

Disposals (1,394) – (144) – – (1,538)

Impairment 10 – – – (2,063) (7,178) (9,241)

Depreciation expense 9 (61,907) (48) (6,617) – – (68,572)

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 2,540,696 1,637 21,387 – 62,653 2,626,373

Additions – – – 46,728 46,728

Capitalised finance expenses 14 – – – – 453 453

Change in rehabilitation and contractual 
arrangement assets (927) – – – – (927)

Transfer to (from) capital work in progress 66,944 – 15,942 – (82,886) – 

Assets transferred on amalgamation of subsidiaries – – 448 – – 448

Disposals (800) – – – – (800)

Impairment 10 (12,345) – – – – (12,345)

Depreciation expense 9 (73,801) (47) (6,411) – – (80,259)

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 2,519,767 1,590 31,366 – 26,948 2,579,671

Summary of cost and accumulated depreciation 
and impairment

As at 30 June 2011

Cost – 2,024 71,893 – 7,349 81,266

Fair value 2,540,696 – – – 55,304 2,596,000

Accumulated depreciation and impairment – (387) (50,506) – – (50,893)

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 2,540,696 1,637 21,387 – 62,653 2,626,373

As at 30 June 2012

Cost – 2,024 88,945 – 5,837 96,806

Fair value 2,605,041 – – – 21,111 2,626,152

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (85,274) (434) (57,579) – – (143,287)

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 2,519,767 1,590 31,366 – 26,948 2,579,671
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Assumptions Method of determination

Wholesale electricity price path In-house market modelling of the wholesale electricity market cross-checked against publicly available price paths.

Projected generation output In-house market modelling of the wholesale electricity market.

Fuel and emissions costs Prices from existing fuel and emission contracts and in-house market modelling where contracted volumes do not 
fully cover projected requirements.

Projected operational and capital expenditure In-house business plans and projections based on contracted positions and asset-management plans.

Capacity and life assumptions for each generation asset In-house assessments and asset-management plans.

Discount rate Pre-tax equivalent discount rate scenarios ranging between 11.8 per cent and 13.1 per cent.

22. Property, plant and equipment continued Acquisition of Tekapo A and B power stations

On 1 June 2011, the Parent acquired Tekapo A 
and B power stations from Meridian Energy 
Limited. The purchase price was $821 million. 
The Group’s accounting policies require the 
carrying value of generation assets such as 
Tekapo A and B power stations to be reviewed 
at each reporting date to ensure they are 
not materially different from their fair value. 
The accounting requirements for valuations 
do not permit the valuation of potential 
portfolio benefits in the fair value for 
accounting purposes. As a result, the fair value 
for accounting purposes was $718 million, $103 
million less than the purchase price paid. 

The difference between the purchase price 
and fair value was recognised in profit or 
loss through depreciation ($6.2 million) and 
revaluation ($96.8 million). Subsequent to 
30 June 2011 a detailed allocation of the 
valuation has been performed which resulted 
in the monthly depreciation charge for the 
current year reducing by $4.4 million to $1.8 
million. The change has been accounted for 
as a change in estimate in the current year in 
accordance with NZ IAS 8 Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Valuation of generation assets

Generation assets (including those showing 
under capital work in progress and leased 

assets) carried at fair value, were revalued at 
30 June 2011. The valuation was prepared by 
the Group and was independently reviewed by 
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PWC”) who has the 
appropriate qualifications and experience in 
valuing generation assets.

The valuation was based on the present value 
of the estimated future cash flows of the assets. 
The fair value of generation assets for accounting 
purposes at valuation date was $2,596 
million which included capital work in progress 
amounting to $55.3 million. The net change in fair 
value was a $297.3 million increase in the book 
value of generation assets. The key assumptions 
and judgements in the valuation model were:

The selection of variables used to value 
generation assets requires significant 
judgement and therefore there is a range of 
reasonably possible assumptions that could be 
used in estimating the fair value of these assets. 
The key assumptions driving potential changes 
to the forecast internally generated price path 
are changes in demand, hydrology and new 
generation build. Any one of these factors could 
result in a change to the price path. If the price 
path increased by 10 per cent, this would result 
in the carrying value of the generation assets 
increasing to $3,140 million. If the price path 
decreased by 10 per cent the carrying value 
would decrease to $2,072 million.

At valuation date (30 June 2011), the economic 
value of the generation assets was $2,524.1 
million which was $71.9 million lower than the 
accounting valuation as Huntly Units 1-4 and 6 
were determined to have negative economic 
values. These assets have a nil value for 
accounting purposes.

The valuation was calculated by generating site 
except for the Huntly site where it was calculated 
by type of unit (Units 1-4, Unit 5 and Unit 6). 
For those sites where the valuation was less 
than the carrying value prior to revaluation, 
the change was recognised in the revaluation 
reserve up to the value that was previously 
recorded in the revaluation reserve prior to the 

revaluation. The remaining difference between 
the change in fair value and the revaluation 
reserve for these sites was recognised in profit 
or loss. For those sites where the valuation 
was higher than the carrying value the change 
in fair value, was recognised in the asset 
revaluation reserve.

As a consequence of the revaluation, 
accumulated depreciation on revalued 
assets was reset to nil at 30 June 2011, and 
a revaluation surplus of $394.2 million was 
recognised in the revaluation reserve and a 
revaluation loss of $96.8 million was recognised 
in profit or loss.
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22. Property, plant and equipment continued

Reconciliation of changes to the carrying value 
of generation assets

Group and Parent
Generation assets 

$000

Generation 
assets in capital 

work in progress 
$000

Total 
$000

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 prior to revaluation 2,243,350 55,304 2,298,654

Gain recognised in other comprehensive income 394,162 – 394,162

Loss recognised in profit or loss (Tekapo A and B power stations) (96,816) – (96,816)

Net gain on revaluation 297,346 – 297,346

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 2,540,696 55,304 2,596,000

Generation assets carried at historical cost

The table below presents the carrying value of generation assets as if they were recognised on the historical cost basis:

Group and Parent
2012 

$000
2011 

$000

Cost 2,444,550 2,379,326

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (802,804) (729,165)

Carrying value at 30 June 1,641,746 1,650,161

Resource consents

The Group requires resource consents (authorisations to use land, water and air) to enable it to operate its thermal, hydro and wind power stations. 
The duration of resource consents varies up to a maximum of 35 years. During the year, the resource consents relating to the operation of the Huntly 
power station were extended to 30 June 2037.
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23. Oil and gas assets

Group Note

Exploration 
and evaluation 

expenditure 
$000

Oil and gas 
producing assets  

$000

Other oil 
and gas assets 

$000
Total 

$000

Carrying value at 1 July 2010 – 500,284 22,666 522,950

Additions 874 – – 874

Transfer from property, plant and equipment 22 – 2,237 – 2,237

Transfer to producing assets – 4,569 (4,569) – 

Change in rehabilitation asset – (3,436) – (3,436)

Impairment 10 (12) – – (12)

Depreciation and depletion expense 9 – (58,964) (859) (59,823)

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 862 444,690 17,238 462,790

Additions 361 2,087 141 2,589

Change in rehabilitation asset – 20,092 – 20,092

Impairment 10 (24) – – (24)

Depreciation and depletion expense 9 – (55,396) (901) (56,297)

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 1,199 411,473 16,478 429,150

Summary of cost and accumulated depreciation, 
depletion and impairment

As at 30 June 2011

Cost 19,355 519,739 18,380 557,474

Accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairment (18,493) (75,049) (1,142) (94,684)

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 862 444,690 17,238 462,790

As at 30 June 2012

Cost 19,716 533,388 18,511 571,615

Accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairment (18,517) (121,915) (2,033) (142,465)

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 1,199 411,473 16,478 429,150

Change in rehabilitation asset

During the year, the rehabilitation and restoration provision for the Kupe Joint Venture onshore and offshore facility was reviewed. The forecasted costs 
in 2012 include significantly more removal costs than originally expected. As a result, the Group has adjusted its rehabilitation provision by $20.1 million.
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23. Oil and gas assets continued

Parent Note

Exploration 
and evaluation 

expenditure 
$000

Total 
$000

Carrying value at 1 July 2010 – –

Additions 32 32

Impairment 10 (32) (32)

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 – –

Additions 24 24

Impairment 10 (24) (24)

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 – –

Summary of cost and accumulated depreciation, 
depletion and impairment

As at 30 June 2011

Cost 32 32

Accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairment (32) (32)

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 – – 

As at 30 June 2012

Cost – – 

Accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairment – – 

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 – – 

The Group has a 31 per cent interest in the Kupe Joint Venture. Kupe production facilities commenced commercial operations on 22 March 2010.

The table below presents the proven oil and gas reserves used to deplete the oil and gas producing assets. The Group has a 31 per cent interest in the 
reserves shown:

Sales gas petajoules LPG kilotonnes Light oil kilobarrels
Total 

petajoules equivalent

Kupe permit 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Kupe – proven (P90) 213.0 192.7 834.9 788.8 11,647 11,288 317.2 294.4

Kupe – proven and probable (P50) 272.7 272.7 1,113.8 1,113.8 18,644 18,644 431.4 428.5

Because the geology of the Kupe oil and gas 
field subsurface cannot be examined directly, 
an indirect technique known as volumetrics 
has been used to estimate the size and 
recoverability of the reserve. Reserve estimates 
contain uncertainty and these are reviewed 
annually. There are high levels of uncertainty 
in terms of accessibility of reserves through 
sealing faults and pressure support. Proven 

reserve estimates have a 90 per cent likelihood 
of being delivered. A reduction of 10 per cent in 
these reserves would impact depletion charges 
by up to $7.7 million per annum at current 
production rates.

Subsequent to balance date, the joint venture 
operator re-estimated Kupe’s proven oil and 
gas reserves (“P90”) using the volumetrics 

technique at 379.7 petajoules equivalent 
(PJe). The reserves re-estimate is subject 
to independent review. As a result of the 
re-estimate, unit of production depletion rates 
will be adjusted prospectively as a change in 
accounting estimate, in line with the Group’s 
accounting policy. This will decrease annual 
depletion charges by approximately $11.6 million 
at current production rates in future years. 
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24. Intangible assets
Group Note

Goodwill 
$000

Computer 
software 

$000

Emission 
units 

$000

Naming 
rights 
$000

Total 
$000

Carrying value at 1 July 2010 102,599 17,601 4,737 3,969 128,906

Additions – 8,543 9,782 1,016 19,341

Disposed or surrendered – (25) (10,612) – (10,637)

Amortisation expense 9 – (10,856) – (1,409) (12,265)

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 102,599 15,263 3,907 3,576 125,345

Additions – 6,418 18,508 2,836 27,762

Disposed or surrendered – 2 (14,791) – (14,789)

Impairment – – (6,756) – (6,756)

Amortisation expense 9 – (10,741) – (1,721) (12,462)

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 102,599 10,942 868 4,691 119,100

Summary of cost and accumulated amortisation 
and impairment

As at 30 June 2011

Cost 102,599 85,605 3,907 6,426 198,537

Accumulated amortisation and impairment – (70,342) – (2,850) (73,192)

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 102,599 15,263 3,907 3,576 125,345

Current – – 3,907 – 3,907

Non-current 102,599 15,263 – 3,576 121,438

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 102,599 15,263 3,907 3,576 125,345

As at 30 June 2012

Cost 102,599 91,624 7,624 10,017 211,864

Accumulated amortisation and impairment – (80,682) (6,756) (5,326) (92,764)

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 102,599 10,942 868 4,691 119,100

Current – – 868 – 868

Non-current 102,599 10,942 – 4,691 118,232

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 102,599 10,942 868 4,691 119,100
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24. Intangible assets continued
Parent Note

Goodwill 
$000

Computer 
software 

$000

Emission 
units 

$000

Naming 
rights 
$000

Total 
$000

Carrying value at 1 July 2010 99,866 17,151 4,737 3,969 125,723

Additions – 8,543 9,782 1,016 19,341

Disposed or surrendered – – (10,612) – (10,612)

Amortisation expense 9 – (10,651) – (1,409) (12,060)

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 99,866 15,043 3,907 3,576 122,392

Additions – 6,418 18,508 2,836 27,762

Assets transferred on amalgamation of subsidiaries 2,733 121 – – 2,854

Disposed or surrendered – – (14,791) – (14,791)

Impairment – – (6,756) – (6,756)

Amortisation expense 9 – (10,640) – (1,721) (12,361)

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 102,599 10,942 868 4,691 119,100

Summary of cost and accumulated amortisation 
and impairment

As at 30 June 2011

Cost 99,866 84,177 3,907 6,426 194,376

Accumulated amortisation and impairment – (69,134) – (2,850) (71,984)

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 99,866 15,043 3,907 3,576 122,392

Current – – 3,907 – 3,907

Non-current 99,866 15,043 – 3,576 118,485

Carrying value at 30 June 2011 99,866 15,043 3,907 3,576 122,392

As at 30 June 2012

Cost 102,599 91,624 7,624 10,017 211,864

Accumulated amortisation and impairment – (80,682) (6,756) (5,326) (92,764)

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 102,599 10,942 868 4,691 119,100

Current – – 868 – 868

Non-current 102,599 10,942 – 4,691 118,232

Carrying value at 30 June 2012 102,599 10,942 868 4,691 119,100



GENESIS ENERGY 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

24. Intangible assets continued Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill relates to customers acquired prior 
to transition to NZ IFRS. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated 
to the Customer Experience cash-generating 
unit (“CGU”).

The impairment test is based on an estimated 
discounted cash flow analysis (value in use). 

Estimated future cash flow projections are 
based on the Group’s five-year business plan for 
the Customer Experience business unit and are 
extrapolated on a consistent basis. A 2 per cent 
growth rate has been used (2011: 2 per cent). 
The estimated future cash flow projections are 
discounted using pre-tax equivalent discount 
rate scenarios ranging between 11.8 per cent 

and 13.1 per cent (2011: 11.8 per cent and 13.1 per 
cent). Any reasonably possible further change 
in key assumptions on which the recoverable 
amount is based is not expected to cause the 
carrying value of the Customer Experience 
goodwill to exceed its recoverable amount.

Key assumptions in the value-in-use 
calculation were:

Assumptions Method of determination

Customer numbers and customer churn Review of actual customer numbers and historical data regarding movements in customer numbers. The historical 
analysis is considered against expected market trends and competition for customers.

Gross margin Review of actual gross margins and consideration of expected market movements and impacts.

Cost to serve Review of actual costs to serve and consideration of expected future costs.

Impairment of emission units        

During the year the Group wrote down the value of its emission units on hand by $6.8 million (2011: nil) to reflect the net recoverable value of the 
asset. Refer to note 20 for the impact on net profit.

25. Investments in subsidiaries On 1 March 2012, Energy Online Limited 
was amalgamated into the Parent. The 
amalgamation resulted in an increase in the 
Parent’s assets of $55.8 million, an increase 
in liabilities of $21.8 million and an increase in 
retained earnings of $34 million.

During 2012, Genesis Power Investments 
Limited, GP No. 1 Limited, GP No. 2 Limited and 
GP No. 5 Limited issued additional share capital 
of $20.8 million to the Parent.

During 2011, GP No. 1 Limited issued additional 
share capital of $5.3 million to the Parent. The 
additional share capital acquired was satisfied 
through the issue of an intercompany loan to 
the Parent. The additional investment in GP 
No. 1 Limited was subsequently impaired. The 
impairment of the investment was offset by the 
reversal of a previous impairment on an earlier 
intercompany loan owing to the Parent. 

During 2011, Cardiff No. 1 Limited, Cardiff No. 2 
Limited and GP No. 4 Limited (the “Cardiff 
Companies”) sold their interest in the Cardiff 
Joint Venture (refer to note 27). On 30 June 
2011, Slopedown Wind Farm Limited and the 
Cardiff Companies were amalgamated into 
the Parent. The amalgamation resulted in an 
increase in the Parent’s assets of $0.5 million, 
a decrease in liabilities of $0.3 million and an 
increase in retained earnings of $0.8 million.

Name of entity Principal activity

Interest held 
2012 

%

Interest held 
2011 

%

Genesis Power Investments Limited Holding company 100 100

Energy Online Limited Energy retailer - 100

Kinleith Cogeneration Limited Special-purpose finance company 100 100

Kupe Holdings Limited Joint venture holding company 100 100

GP No. 1 Limited Joint venture holding company 100 100

GP No. 2 Limited Joint venture holding company 100 100

GP No. 5 Limited Joint venture holding company 100 100

All subsidiaries have a 30 June balance date and are incorporated in New Zealand.
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25. Investments in subsidiaries continued Movements in the carrying value of investments in subsidiaries is set out below:

Parent
2012 

$000
2011 

$000

Carrying value at 1 July 29,753 29,842

Acquisition of shares in existing subsidiaries 20,820 5,330

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries – (5,330)

Investment in subsidiaries eliminated on amalgamation – (89)

Carrying value at 30 June 50,573 29,753

26. Investments in associates
Name of entity Principal activity

Interest held 
2012 

%

Interest held 
2011 

%

Gasbridge Limited Agency for joint venture 50 50

Energyhedge Limited Non-trader – 20

All associates have a 30 June balance date and 
are incorporated in New Zealand. During the 
year, Energyhedge Limited was de-registered. 
The carrying value of the investment in 

associates at year-end was nil (2011: nil) and 
there were no movements in the investment in 
associates during the year (2011: nil). 
The Group’s share of the net profit for 

Gasbridge Limited and Energyhedge 
Limited was nil (2011: nil). The Group’s share 
of assets and liabilities was $0.001 million (2011: 
$0.001 million).

27. Jointly controlled assets and entities The Group has a 31 per cent interest in the Kupe 
production facility and Petroleum Mining Permit 
38146 held by the Kupe Joint Venture.

The Group has a 50 per cent interest in the 
Gasbridge Joint Venture. The Gasbridge Joint 

Venture was established to investigate the 
feasibility of developing facilities to import 
Liquefied Natural Gas at the Port of Taranaki. 
The Joint Venture has delayed this investigation 
until further notice. 

During 2011, the Group sold its 55.1 per cent 
interest in the deep petroleum rights in 
Petroleum Exploration Permit 38738 and 
Petroleum Mining Permit 38156 held by the 
Cardiff Joint Venture resulting in a gain on 
disposal of $1.2 million (refer to note 12).

Name of entity Principal activity

Interest held 
2012 

%

Interest held 
2011 

%

Kupe Joint Venture Petroleum production and sale 31 31

Gasbridge Joint Venture Liquefied natural gas importation development 50 50
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27. Jointly controlled assets and entities 
continued

The table below reflects the Group’s share of jointly controlled assets and entities:

Group
2012 

$000
2011 

$000

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8,054 5,702

Receivables and prepayments 615 1,248

Inventories 895 525

Total current assets 9,564 7,475

Non-current assets

Oil and gas assets 459,194 458,177

Total non-current assets 459,194 458,177

Total share of assets employed in joint venture 468,758 465,652

Current liabilities

Payables and accruals (8,613) (8,952)

Total share of liabilities employed in joint venture (8,613) (8,952)

Revenue 282 183

Petroleum production, marketing and distribution (24,668) (20,448)

Share of profit (24,386) (20,265)

The Group’s share of capital expenditure commitments relating to joint ventures is disclosed in note 34.

28. Related-party transactions Shareholder and entities controlled and related 
to the shareholder

The Crown owns 100 per cent of the shares of 
the Parent. The Parent and Group transact with 
other Crown-controlled and related entities 
independently and on an arm’s-length basis for 

the purchase of coal and use of coal-handling 
facilities, emission activities including emission 
unit purchases and sales, scientific consultancy 
services, electricity transmission, postal services 
and energy-related products (including 
electricity derivatives). All transactions with 

Crown-controlled and related entities are based 
on commercial terms and conditions and 
relevant market drivers.

The following represent individually 
significant transactions with the Crown and 
Crown-controlled and related entities:

Group
Transaction value (inflow (outflow)) for 

the year ended 30 June
Outstanding balance 

(payable) receivable as at 30 June

Entity Transaction
2012 

$000
2011 

$000
2012 

$000
2011 

$000

Meridian Energy Limited
Acquisition of Tekapo A and B power stations 
(refer to note 22) – 820,996 – –

Other transactions with Crown-controlled and related entities which are collectively but not individually significant relate to the purchase of coal 
and electricity derivatives. Approximately 91 per cent (2011: 92 per cent) of the coal acquired by the Group during the year was supplied by Crown-
controlled and related entities under coal supply agreements which expire in August 2014. Approximately 97 per cent (2011: 79 per cent) of the value 
of electricity derivatives held by the Group at year-end are held with Crown-controlled and related entities. The contracts expire at various times with 
the latest one being December 2025.
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28. Related-party transactions continued Key management personnel compensation

The key management personnel of the Group consists of the Directors and the Executive Management team. Key management personnel 
compensation is as follows:

Group
2012 

$000
2011 

$000

Short-term benefits 5,251 5,194

Post-employment benefits 158 135

Termination benefits – 740

Total key management personnel compensation 5,409 6,069

Other transactions with key management personnel or entities related to them

Key management personnel and their families purchase gas and electricity from the Group on an arm’s-length basis. No other transactions took 
place between key management personnel and the Group or Parent (2011: 425,000 capital bonds were purchased by key management personnel). 
As at 30 June 2012, the balance payable to key management personnel (including capital bonds) was $15,000 (2011: $357,000). 

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries of the Group are disclosed in note 25. Transactions between the Parent and its subsidiaries are disclosed below:

Parent

Transaction value 
(inflow (outflow)) for 

the year ended 30 June

Outstanding balance 
(payable) receivable 

as at 30 June

Entity Transaction
2012 

$000
2011 

$000
2012 

$000
2011 

$000

GP No. 1 Limited No interest is charged on the advance to/from GP No. 1 Limited. – – (610) 27

Genesis Power Investments Limited, 
Energy Online Limited and Kinleith 
Cogeneration Limited

Interest is charged to the Parent on advances from subsidiaries. 
The advances are unsecured and have no repayment terms or conditions. 
Interest is charged at a rate equal to the Parent’s average finance expense. 
Interest charged is added to the advance account. The outstanding balance 
includes interest and advances payable.

(7,962) (6,425) (102,407) (114,327)

Kupe Holdings Limited, GP No. 2 
Limited and GP No. 5 Limited

Interest is charged by the Parent on advances to subsidiaries. The advances 
are unsecured, and have no repayment terms or conditions. Interest is 
charged at a rate equal to the Parent’s average finance expense. Interest 
charged is added to the advance account. The outstanding balance includes 
interest and advances receivable.

22,220 27,599  296,023  373,781 

Supply agreement for the purchase of LPG and gas produced from the 
Kupe Joint Venture. The contract continues until the total quantity of LPG 
and gas under the contract has been paid or delivered.

(68,400) (60,400) (6,500) (4,500)

The Parent has entered into foreign currency swaps with the Kupe companies. (2,443) (3,006) (2,116) (3,007)

The Parent has entered into oil swaps and options with the Kupe companies. (1,211) 16,929 (3,119) 7,160

Genesis Power Investments Limited, 
GP No. 1 Limited, GP No. 2 Limited and 
GP No. 5 Limited

The Parent acquired additional share capital in these subsidiaries 
(refer to note 25).

(20,820) (5,330) – – 

Genesis Power Investments Limited, 
Energy Online Limited, Kinleith 
Cogeneration Limited, Kupe Holdings 
Limited, GP No. 1 Limited, GP No. 2 
Limited and GP No. 5 Limited

Transfer of tax losses/(deposits). (6,636) 10,754 – – 
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28. Related-party transactions continued Associates

Associates of the Group are disclosed in note 
26. There were no transactions with associates 
during the year (2011: nil).

Jointly controlled assets and entities

Jointly controlled assets and entities of the 
Group are disclosed in note 27. There were no 
transactions with jointly controlled assets and 
entities during the year (2011: nil).

Other related parties

Genesis Oncology Trust

The Group has a sponsorship agreement 
with the Genesis Oncology Trust. The annual 
sponsorship paid to the Trust was $0.2 million 
(2011: $0.2 million). In 2012, the Group made 
additional donations of $0.2 million (2011: $0.2 

million). The total amount outstanding at year 
end was $0.2 million (2011: $0.1 million).

The Group provides the Trust with accounting 
and administrative support free of charge. 
Albert Brantley (Chief Executive of Genesis 
Power Limited) is the Chairman of the Trust. 
Maureen Shaddick (General Counsel and 
Company Secretary of Genesis Power Limited) 
is the Deputy Chair of the Trust. The Trust 
acquired 300,000 capital bonds from 
Genesis Power Limited during 2011 which 
have yet to be repaid.

Gas Industry Company Limited

The Group has a 12.5 per cent share in the Gas 
Industry Company Limited which is an industry-
owned entity established to fulfil the role of 
the industry body under the Gas Act 1992. The 
entity, as the industry body, is the co-regulator 

of the gas industry, working with both the 
Government and the gas industry to develop 
outcomes that meet the Government’s policy 
objectives as stated in the Government’s April 
2008 Policy Statement on Gas Governance. 
During the year, the Group made payments to 
the Gas Industry Company Limited in the form 
of levies and cost reimbursements totalling 
$1.8 million (2011: $2.3 million).

Other environmental restoration and 
enhancement and charitable trusts

The Group has identified a number of 
other trusts established for charitable or 
environmental enhancement and restoration 
purposes which fall within the scope of the 
definition of related parties. During the year, 
the Group made payments of $0.1 million 
(2011: $0.1 million) to these trusts.

29. Payables and accruals Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Trade payables and accruals 268,631 227,152 258,016 199,814

Employee benefits 5,775 4,688 5,775 4,688

Emission obligations 14,415 9,622 14,333 9,457

Total 288,821 241,462 278,124 213,959

Current 288,342 241,462 277,645 213,959

Non-current 479 – 479 – 

Total 288,821 241,462 278,124 213,959

Trade payables and accruals consist mainly of amounts owing to suppliers for goods and services supplied in the ordinary course of business, and 
amounts owing to NZX Limited for wholesale electricity purchases from the market.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012
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30. Borrowings Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Revolving credit 307,438 510,000 307,438 510,000

Wholesale term notes 200,699 197,231 200,699 197,231

Retail term notes 228,005 227,317 228,005 227,317

Capital bonds 274,058 270,418 274,058 270,418

Finance lease liabilities 9,280 12,741 9,280 12,741

Total 1,019,480 1,217,707 1,019,480 1,217,707

Current 16,494 411,543 16,494 411,543

Non-current 1,002,986 806,164 1,002,986 806,164

Total 1,019,480 1,217,707 1,019,480 1,217,707

Refinancing of revolving credit

During the year the Parent restructured its revolving credit arrangements, reducing its revolving credit from $675 million to $525 million and extending 
its maturity profile.

Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Revolving credit

Expiring 2012 – 400,000 – 400,000

Expiring 2013 – 50,000 – 50,000

Expiring 2014 125,000 200,000 125,000 200,000

Expiring 2015 100,000 225,000 100,000 225,000

Expiring 2016 150,000 200,000 150,000 200,000

Expiring 2017 150,000 – 150,000 – 

Total available revolving credit facility 525,000 1,075,000 525,000 1,075,000

Revolving credit drawn down at 30 June (excluding accrued interest) 305,000 510,000 305,000 510,000

Total undrawn revolving credit facility 220,000 565,000 220,000 565,000

Revolving credit

Drawn down 305,000 510,000 305,000 510,000

Accrued interest 2,438 – 2,438 – 

Total revolving credit 307,438 510,000 307,438 510,000
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30. Borrowings continued Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Wholesale term notes

Expiring 2017 125,000 125,000 125,000 125,000

Expiring 2020 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000

Fair value interest rate risk adjustment 11 3,338 – 3,338 – 

Accrued interest 2,782 2,668 2,782 2,668

Capitalised issue costs (421) (437) (421) (437)

Total wholesale term notes 200,699 197,231 200,699 197,231

Retail term notes

Expiring 2014 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000

Expiring 2016 105,000 105,000 105,000 105,000

Accrued interest 4,911 4,877 4,911 4,877

Capitalised issue costs (1,906) (2,560) (1,906) (2,560)

Total retail term notes 228,005 227,317 228,005 227,317

Capital bonds

Expiring 2042 275,000 275,000 275,000 275,000

Accrued interest 4,919 2,431 4,919 2,431

Capitalised issue costs (5,861) (7,013) (5,861) (7,013)

Total capital bonds 274,058 270,418 274,058 270,418

The Parent may redeem all or some of the 
capital bonds on a reset date or on any 
quarterly interest payment date after the first 
reset date which is 16 July 2016. On the first 
reset date and every five years thereafter, the 
interest rate will reset to be the sum of the five-
year swap rate on the relevant reset date plus a 
margin of 4.12 per cent. Redemptions on a reset 
date are at par, redemptions on a quarterly 

interest payment date must be at the greater 
of par or market value.

Finance lease liabilities

The Parent leases certain equipment relating to 
the importation of coal situated at the Port of 
Tauranga under a finance lease arrangement. 
The lease has a term of eight years with a 
renewal option for a further three terms of five 

years. The Parent does not have any right to 
purchase the leased assets at the end of the 
lease. There are no restrictions imposed by 
this lease, such as those concerning dividend 
distributions, additional debt financing and 
further leasing arrangements. In prior years, 
the Parent had a five-year lease on the Huntly 
substation extension which expired during 2011. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012
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30. Borrowings continued Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Not later than one year 4,280 4,277 4,280 4,277

Later than one year but not later than five years 6,063 10,335 6,063 10,335

Future minimum lease payments 10,343 14,612 10,343 14,612

Future finance charges on finance leases (1,063) (1,871) (1,063) (1,871)

Present value of future minimum lease payments 9,280 12,741 9,280 12,741

The present value of future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Not later than one year 3,681 3,424 3,681 3,424

Later than one year but not later than five years 5,599 9,317 5,599 9,317

Present value of future minimum lease payments 9,280 12,741 9,280 12,741

The weighted average effective interest rate implicit in the leases is 7.05 per cent (2011: 7.05 per cent).

Security

Except for finance leases, all of the Parent and Group’s borrowings are unsecured. The Parent and Group borrow under a negative pledge 
arrangement, which does not permit the Parent or Group to grant any security interest over its assets, unless it is an exception permitted within the 
negative pledge.

Finance lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets recognised in the financial statements revert to the lessor in the event 
of default.
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31. Provisions Rehabilitation and restoration 

The rehabilitation and restoration provision 
relates to the Meremere generation site, 
the Huntly ash ponds and Kupe production 
facilities. These sites require remediation as a 
result of past and present operations. Different 
methods and techniques can be used to 
remediate the sites. The provision represents 
the present value of the Group’s best estimate 
of future expenditure to be incurred based on 
the Group’s assessment of the most appropriate 
methods to remediate the sites at balance date. 
Key assumptions include: an estimate of when 
the rehabilitation and restoration is likely to take 
place, the possible remediation alternatives 
available, the expected expenditures attached 
to each alternative and the foreign currency 
exchange rate at balance date. 

The assumptions used to estimate the 
rehabilitation and restoration provision requires 
a balanced judgement as there are a range 
of possible assumptions that could be used 
in estimating the carrying value of these 
obligations. The key assumption that could have 
a material impact on the Meremere generation 
site rehabilitation estimate relates to the extent 
of rehabilitation required at the end of the lease. 
The extent of rehabilitation depends on the 
effectiveness of the historical rehabilitation work 
and the rehabilitation obligations under the 
lease. The current assumption is that the current 
remediation work with some further tidy up at 
the end of the lease in 2017 is sufficient. If future 

monitoring indicates that the clay caps need 
further remediation work, the provision would 
need to increase by up to $1.7 million. The site is 
monitored regularly and the rehabilitation plan 
amended as necessary.

The key assumption that could have a material 
impact on the Huntly ash ponds rehabilitation 
estimate relates to the extent of rehabilitation 
work required. The current assumption is that 
all the ash would be removed from the ponds 
but if some of the ash was capped in situ then 
the provision could decrease by $3.5 million. 
The rehabilitation work on the ash ponds is 
estimated to be completed within the next 
14 years. This assumption is different to the 
previous years where it was expected that up to 
50 per cent would need to be removed.

The key assumptions that could have a material 
impact on the Kupe production facilities 
rehabilitation estimate relates to foreign 
exchange rates, scrap steel prices, labour 
rates, concrete removal costs, offshore supply 
vessel and jack-up rig rates and associated 
mobilisation and demobilisation costs. The 
majority of costs are based in (United States 
Dollars) USD and therefore are sensitive 
to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. 
Given the equipment required to complete 
the rehabilitation comes from overseas, the 
mobilisation and demobilisation costs can 
fluctuate significantly depending on the volume 
of other work the contractor has at the time the 
rehabilitation is required to be completed. 

If the foreign exchange rate was to decrease 
by 10 per cent and if the transportation costs 
for the mobilisation and demobilisation 
were unable to be shared with other entities, 
the provision would increase by $13.5 million. 
Also affecting the provision is regulations 
around the removal of the subsea pipeline. 
Currently there are no regulations around this 
and as such the provision assumes the subsea 
pipeline will be flushed and left in situ. The 
rehabilitation is estimated to be completed in 
approximately 12 years.

Contractual arrangements

The contractual arrangements provision relates 
to relationship and sponsorship agreements 
with various parties. The provision represents 
the present value of the best estimate of cash 
flows required to settle the Group’s obligations 
under the agreements. The timing of the 
outflows is between 10 and 35 years.

Other provisions

Other provisions represent the present value 
of the customer loyalty programme ‘Brownie 
Points’ and other minor provisions. A provision 
has been recognised for 87.5 per cent of the 
full liability of the Brownie Points programme 
as this reflects the estimated redemption 
rate. The timing of the outflows is dependent 
on customers redeeming their points after 
achieving a minimum rewards points balance. 
Unredeemed rewards points expire after a 
period of three years. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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31. Provisions continued Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Rehabilitation and restoration

Balance at 1 July 38,329 39,959 12,521 11,279

Provisions made during the year 23,071 – 2,980 – 

Provisions reversed during the year – (4,527) – – 

Provisions used during the year (3,572) – (3,572) – 

Time value of money adjustment 2,097 2,897 549 1,242

Balance at 30 June 59,925 38,329 12,478 12,521

Contractual arrangements

Balance at 1 July 56,071 16,627 56,071 16,627

Provisions made during the year 5,308 40,748 5,308 40,748

Provisions reversed during the year (3,580) (29) (3,580) (29)

Provisions used during the year (5,224) (2,983) (5,224) (2,983)

Time value of money adjustment 2,196 1,708 2,196 1,708

Balance at 30 June 54,771 56,071 54,771 56,071

Other provisions

Balance at 1 July 10,129 6,325 10,129 6,325

Provisions made during the year 4,943 4,465 4,943 4,465

Provisions reversed during the year (3,248) (36) (3,248) (36)

Provisions used during the year (3,348) (625) (3,348) (625)

Balance at 30 June 8,476 10,129 8,476 10,129

Total 123,172 104,529 75,725 78,721

Current 12,925 14,156 12,925 14,156

Non-current 110,247 90,373 62,800 64,565

Total 123,172 104,529 75,725 78,721
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32. Derivatives The Group activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and 
liquidity risk. The Group uses the following derivatives to hedge its financial risk exposures:

•	 Interest	rate	swaps

•	 Foreign	exchange	swaps	and	options

•	 Electricity	swaps	and	options

•	 Oil	swaps	and	options

Net carrying value of derivatives

Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Cash flow hedges designated at fair value through profit or loss

Foreign exchange swaps 1,082 (1,344) (1,034) (4,351)

Interest rate swaps (10,066) 1,426 (10,066) 1,426

Electricity swaps 4,189 (2,512) 4,189 (2,512)

Oil swaps 645 – – – 

Fair value hedges designated at fair value through profit or loss

Interest rate swaps 3,338 – 3,338 – 

Derivatives not designated as hedges

Foreign exchange options 20 1,917 20 1,917

Electricity swaps and options (39,109) (18,577) (39,109) (18,577)

Oil swaps and options 2,474 (7,160) – – 

Total (37,427) (26,250) (42,662) (22,097)

Carrying value of derivatives by balance sheet classification

Current assets 15,377 9,398 16,200 17,265

Non-current assets 22,913 34,952 22,979 36,668

Current liabilities (11,425) (17,676) (16,559) (21,095)

Non-current liabilities (64,292) (52,924) (65,282) (54,935)

Total (37,427) (26,250) (42,662) (22,097)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012
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32. Derivatives continued

Change in carrying value of derivatives Group Note

Oil swaps 
and options 

$000

Interest rate 
swaps 
$000

Foreign 
exchange swaps 

and options 
$000

Electricity 
swaps and 

options  
$000

Total 
$000

Balance as at 1 July 2010 2,822 1,553 (1,107) (17,656) (14,388)

Total change recognised in electricity and petroleum revenue (5,897) – – 29,071 23,174

Net change in derivatives not designated as hedges (11,032) – – (1,580) (12,612)

Ineffective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges – – (86) – (86)

Total change recognised in the change in fair value of 
financial instruments 11 (11,032) – (86) (1,580) (12,698)

Gain (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income – 7,812 (1,105) 8,053 14,760

Settlements 5,897 (7,939) 861 (6,770) (7,951)

Sales (option fees) – – – (32,207) (32,207)

Purchases (option fees) 1,050 – 2,010 – 3,060

Balance as at 30 June 2011 (7,160) 1,426 573 (21,089) (26,250)

Total change recognised in electricity and petroleum revenue (9,068) – – 36,518 27,450

Net change in derivatives not designated as hedges 9,643 – (2,247) (18,714) (11,318)

Net change in fair value hedges – 3,338 – – 3,338

Total change recognised in the change in fair value of 
financial instruments 11 9,643 3,338 (2,247) (18,714) (7,980)

Gain (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income 636 (10,103) 2,515 13,074 6,122

Settlements 9,068 (1,389) (87) (3,256) 4,336

Sales (option fees) – – – (41,453) (41,453)

Purchases (option fees) – – 348 – 348

Balance as at 30 June 2012 3,119 (6,728) 1,102 (34,920) (37,427)
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32. Derivatives continued

Parent Note

Interest rate 
swaps 
$000

Foreign 
exchange swaps 

and options 
$000

Electricity 
swaps and 

options  
$000

Total 
$000

Balance as at 1 July 2010 1,553 (1,086) (17,656) (17,189)

Total change recognised in electricity revenue – – 29,071 29,071

Net change in derivatives not designated as hedges – – (1,580) (1,580)

Ineffective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges – (86) – (86)

Total change recognised in the change in fair value of financial instruments 11 – (86) (1,580) (1,666)

Gain (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income 7,812 (4,133) 8,053 11,732

Settlements (7,939) 861 (6,770) (13,848)

Sales (option fees) – – (32,207) (32,207)

Purchases (option fees) – 2,010 – 2,010

Balance as at 30 June 2011 1,426 (2,434) (21,089) (22,097)

Total change recognised in electricity revenue – – 36,518 36,518

Net change in derivatives not designated as hedges – (2,247) (18,714) (20,961)

Net change in fair value hedges 3,338 – – 3,338

Total change recognised in the change in fair value of financial instruments 11 3,338 (2,247) (18,714) (17,623)

Gain (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income (10,103) 879 13,074 3,850

Settlements (1,389) 2,440 (3,256) (2,205)

Sales (option fees) – – (41,453) (41,453)

Purchases (option fees) – 348 – 348

Balance as at 30 June 2012 (6,728) (1,014) (34,920) (42,662)
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32. Derivatives continued

Reconciliation of movements in the cash flow 
hedge reserve

Group Note

Oil swaps 
and options 

$000

Interest rate 
swaps 
$000

Foreign 
exchange swaps 

and options 
$000

Electricity 
swaps and 

options  
$000

Total 
$000

Balance as at 1 July 2010 – 1,119 (638) (269) 212

Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to profit or loss – (7,940) 849 (10,192) (17,283)

Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to the cost of assets – – 898 – 898

Effective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges recognised directly in the 
cash flow hedge reserve – 7,812 (1,105) 8,053 14,760

Total change in cash flow hedge reserve – (128) 642 (2,139) (1,625)

Income tax on change in cash flow hedge reserve 15 – 36 (179) 599 456

Balance as at 30 June 2011 – 1,027 (175) (1,809) (957)

Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to profit or loss – (1,390) (88) (6,373) (7,851)

Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to the cost of assets – – (842) – (842)

Effective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges recognised directly in the 
cash flow hedge reserve 636 (10,103) 2,515 13,074 6,122

Total change in cash flow hedge reserve 636 (11,493) 1,585 6,701 (2,571)

Income tax on change in cash flow hedge reserve 15 (178) 3,218 (444) (1,876) 720

Balance as at 30 June 2012 458 (7,248) 966 3,016 (2,808)

Parent Note

Interest rate 
swaps 
$000

Foreign 
exchange swaps 

and options 
$000

Electricity 
swaps and 

options  
$000

Total 
$000

Balance as at 1 July 2010 1,119 (623) (269) 227

Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to profit or loss (7,940) 848 (10,191) (17,283)

Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to the cost of assets – 898 – 898

Effective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges recognised directly in the cash flow hedge reserve 7,812 (4,133) 8,053 11,732

Total change in cash flow hedge reserve (128) (2,387) (2,138) (4,653)

Income tax on change in cash flow hedge reserve 15 36 669 599 1,304

Balance as at 30 June 2011 1,027 (2,341) (1,808) (3,122)

Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to profit or loss (1,390) 2,440 (6,373) (5,323)

Total reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to the cost of assets – (842) – (842)

Effective gain (loss) on cash flow hedges recognised directly in the cash flow hedge reserve (10,103) 879 13,074 3,850

Total change in cash flow hedge reserve (11,493) 2,477 6,701 (2,315)

Income tax on change in cash flow hedge reserve 15 3,218 (694) (1,876) 648

Balance as at 30 June 2012 (7,248) (558) 3,017 (4,789)

The gain (loss) on interest rate swaps is recognised in finance expenses, the gain (loss) on foreign exchange swaps and options is recognised in other 
operating expenses and the gain (loss) on electricity swaps and options is recognised in electricity revenue in the profit or loss.
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33. Financial risk management Risk management

The Group’s overall risk-management 
programme focuses on the unpredictability 
of financial markets and seeks to minimise 
financial risk to the Group. The Board of 
Directors (the “Board”) has established policies 
which provide an overall risk-management 
framework, as well as policies covering specific 
areas such as electricity and oil price risk, 
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit 
risk, use of derivatives and the investment of 
excess liquidity. Trading in financial instruments, 
including derivatives, for speculative purposes 
is not permitted by the Board. Interest rate, 
foreign exchange and oil price exposures are 
managed by the central Treasury function 
(“Treasury”) and electricity exposures are 
managed by the Risk Management Group 
(“Risk”). Treasury and Risk identify, evaluate 
and hedge financial risks in close cooperation 

with the Group’s operating units. Compliance 
with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by 
the Group’s internal auditor. 

Price risk 

The Group is exposed to movements in the 
spot price of electricity arising through the 
sale and purchase of electricity to and from 
the market. The Group is also exposed to 
movements in the spot price of light crude oil 
arising from sales of its share of oil from the 
Kupe production facilities.

Electricity sales and purchases 

The Group manages price risk in relation to 
electricity sales and purchases by entering 
into electricity swaps and options. Electricity 
swaps and options are either traded on the 
ASX or negotiated bilaterally with other energy 
companies and major customers. Electricity 

options are entered into as needs are identified 
and as counterparties seek to hedge their 
electricity purchase exposure. At balance date 
the Group had electricity option contracts 
giving the counterparty the right to exercise a 
call option and electricity cap contracts. 

The aggregate notional face value of the 
outstanding electricity swaps and options 
at balance date was $1,879.7 million 
(2011: $2,067.9 million).

Light crude oil sales 

The Group manages price risk in respect of oil 
sales by entering into oil options which provide 
a minimum price for future oil sales or oil price 
swap contracts which provide a fixed price for 
future oil sales.

The aggregate notional value of the outstanding 
oil swaps and options at balance date was USD 
64 million (2011: USD 105.7 million).

Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Electricity swaps and options

Post-tax impact on profit or loss

+10% (26,662) (37,089) (26,662) (37,089)

–10% 21,210 31,677 21,210 31,677

Post-tax impact on cash flow hedge reserve (equity)

+10% (24,196) (32,150) (24,196) (32,150)

–10% 24,196 32,150 24,196 32,150

Oil swaps and options

Post-tax impact on profit or loss

+10% (3,336) (5,675) – – 

–10% 3,338 5,807 – – 

Post-tax impact on cash flow hedge reserve (equity)

+10% (521) – – – 

–10% 521 – – – 
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33. Financial risk management continued Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency 
risk as a result of capital and operational 
transactions denominated in a currency other 
than the Group’s functional currency (including 
the purchase of coal, capital equipment 
and maintenance, and the sale of gas and 
petroleum). The currencies giving rise to this 

risk are primarily the United States dollar, 
Australian dollar, Euro and Japanese yen.

The Group uses foreign exchange swaps and 
options to manage foreign exchange risk. All 
capital project commitments and all capital 
purchase orders where exposure and currency 
levels are confirmed are hedged. All sales, 
operational commitments and purchase orders 

denominated in foreign currency over the 
equivalent of $500,000 New Zealand dollars 
are also hedged in accordance with the Group’s 
Treasury policy.

The following table details the foreign exchange 
swaps and options outstanding at balance date. 
A positive number represents a buy contract 
and a negative represents a sell contract.

Currency of contract

Group

Foreign 
amount 

2012 
000

Foreign 
amount 

2011 
000

Face value 
2012 

$000

Face value 
2011 

$000

Fair value 
2012 

$000

Fair value 
2011 

$000

United States dollar (23,924) 12,627 (32,941) 14,303 2,150 5,059

Australian dollar 98 – 122 – 2 – 

Euro 7,869 304 12,931 577 (433) (42)

Japanese yen 1,227,123 2,073,518 20,473 36,239 (620) (4,444)

British pound sterling 87 – 168 – 3 – 

Total foreign exchange swaps and options 753 51,119 1,102 573

Currency of contract Parent

Foreign 
amount 

2012 
000

Foreign 
amount 

2011 
000

Face value 
2012 

$000

Face value 
2011 

$000

Fair value 
2012 

$000

Fair value 
2011 

$000

United States dollar 7,576 32,226 9,322 41,677 34 2,052

Australian dollar 98 – 122 – 2 – 

Euro 7,869 304 12,931 577 (433) (42)

Japanese yen 1,227,123 2,073,518 20,473 36,239 (620) (4,444)

British pound sterling 87 – 168 – 3 – 

Total foreign exchange swaps and options 43,016 78,493 (1,014) (2,434)

The values of foreign exchange swaps and 
options are sensitive to changes in the 
forward prices of currencies. The table below 
summarises the impact an increase/decrease 
in foreign exchange rates would have on the 

Group’s post-tax profit or loss for the year 
and on the Group’s cash flow hedge reserve. 
The sensitivity analysis is based on the 
assumption that the New Zealand dollar 
had weakened/strengthened by 10 per cent 

against the currencies with which the 
Group has foreign currency risk with all 
other variables held constant. A positive 
number represents an increase in profit or 
the cash flow hedge reserve.
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33. Financial risk management continued There have been no changes in the methods and assumptions used in the sensitivity calculations from the previous year.

Currency of contract % change 
in rate

Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Post-tax impact on profit or loss

United States dollar +10% 1 138 1 138

–10% (1) (251) (1) (251)

Total foreign exchange swaps and options +10% 1 138 1 138

Total foreign exchange swaps and options –10% (1) (251) (1) (251)

Post-tax impact on cash flow hedge reserve (equity)

United States dollar +10% 2,514 1,811 (128) 129

–10% (3,020) (1,974) 160 (158)

Australian dollar +10% (8) – (8) – 

–10% 10 – 10 – 

Euro +10% (817) (35) (817) (35)

–10% 1,001 – 1,001 – 

Japanese yen +10% (1,301) (2,073) (1,301) (2,073)

–10% 1,598 2,547 1,598 2,547

British pound sterling +10% (12) – (12) – 

–10% 13 – 13 – 

Total foreign exchange swaps and options +10% 376 (297) (2,266) (1,979)

Total foreign exchange swaps and options –10% (398) 573 2,782 2,389

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as 
a portion of borrowings have floating interest 
rates. The Group uses interest rate swaps to 
manage interest rate risk. The Group’s policy 

sets maximum and minimum control limits 
for fixed interest rate exposure which range 
from between 50 per cent and 100 per cent 
of projected debt with an age profile of less 
than one year to a maximum of 50 per cent for 

projected debt with an age profile of greater 
than five years.

The following table details the notional principal 
amounts and the remaining terms of interest 
rate swaps outstanding at balance date:

Average contracted fixed 
interest rates

Notional principal 
amount Fair value

Group and Parent
2012 

%
2011 

%
2012 

$000
2011 

$000
2012 

$000
2011 

$000

Not later than one year 2.93 – 200,000 – (92) – 

Later than one year and not later than two years 3.51 3.04 50,000 250,000 (545) (252)

Later than two years and not later than five years 8.10 – 25,000 – 3,338 – 

Later than five years 5.32 5.89 180,000 205,000 (9,429) 1,678

4.70 4.32 455,000 455,000 (6,728) 1,426
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33. Financial risk management continued The values of interest rate swaps are sensitive 
to changes in forward interest rates. The table 
below summarises the impact an increase/
decrease in interest rates would have on the 
Group’s post-tax profit or loss for the year and 

on the Group’s cash flow hedge reserve. 
The sensitivity analysis is based on the 
assumption that interest rates had been 
100 basis points higher/lower with all other 
variables held constant. A positive number 

represents an increase in profit or the cash flow 
hedge reserve.

There have been no changes in the methods 
and assumptions used in the sensitivity 
calculations from the previous year.

Group and Parent
2012 

$000
2011 

$000

Post-tax impact on profit

+1% (808) – 

-1% 766 – 

Post-tax impact on cash flow hedge reserve (equity)

+1% 5,550 6,995

-1% (5,021) (6,432)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will 
default on its contractual obligations, resulting in 
financial loss to the Group. The Group is exposed 
to credit risk in the normal course of business 
arising from trade receivables, from finance leases 
(where the Group is lessor), and with banks and 
financial institutions where short-term deposits 
are held. The Group is also exposed to credit risk 
arising from derivative counterparties defaulting 
on their contractual obligations.

The Group is a producer and retailer of electricity 
and gas. In terms of wholesale sales to the 
National Grid, credit risk is significantly reduced 
as the Group purchases from the grid for its 
retail customer base. Credit risk is limited to the 
net position on settlement. In addition, market 
security requirements in place ensure that there 
is no significant credit risk for any one participant. 
Market participants are required to provide letters 
of credit to the market clearing agent (NZX 
Limited) which would be called upon should any 
market participant default.

Credit risk exposure arising from the supply of 
electricity and gas to the retail market is limited 
due to the Group’s large customer base and, 
in respect of its larger customers, the diverse 
range of industries they represent throughout 
New Zealand. The Group has adopted a 
policy of dealing only with creditworthy trade 

counterparties and obtaining collateral, where 
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk 
of financial loss from defaults. The Group also 
minimises its exposure to credit risk in this area 
through the adoption of counterparty credit-
limits, and active credit management practices 
such as monitoring the size and nature of 
exposures and mitigating the risk deemed to 
be over acceptable levels.

A bond is held as collateral from post-paid 
electricity customers where their credit profile 
does not meet the level set by the Group. The 
bond is managed in accordance with the terms 
and conditions outlined in the supply agreement 
with individual customers. The bond is returned 
to the customer at cessation of supply. The value 
of collateral held at balance date was $5 million 
(2011: $5 million). The carrying value of the bond 
is considered to approximate its fair value.

Derivative counterparties and cash transactions 
are limited to high-credit-quality financial 
institutions and other organisations. The 
Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its 
counterparties are continuously monitored, and 
the aggregate value of transactions concluded 
is spread amongst approved counterparties. The 
Group has no significant concentration of credit 
risk with any one financial institution.

The carrying amounts of financial assets 
recognised in the balance sheet best represent 

the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at 
the reporting date.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s liquidity risk arises from its ability 
to readily attract cost-effective funding, 
which is largely driven by its credit standing 
(Standard & Poor’s = BBB+). Prudent liquidity 
risk management implies maintaining sufficient 
cash and marketable securities, the availability 
of funding through an adequate amount of 
committed credit facilities and the spreading of 
debt maturities.

Liquidity risk is monitored by continuously 
forecasting cash flows and matching the 
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s liquidity 
analysis for its financial liabilities and derivatives. 
The table has been drawn up based on the 
undiscounted cash inflows (outflows) for all 
financial liabilities and derivatives. The amounts 
in the table are the undiscounted contractual 
cash flows. Where the amount payable or 
receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has 
been determined by reference to the internally 
generated forward price curves existing at 
balance date. As the amounts included in the 
tables are contractual undiscounted cash flows, 
these amounts will not reconcile to the amounts 
disclosed in the balance sheet.
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As at 30 June 2012 Group

Weighted average 
effective interest rate 

%

Less than 
1 year 
$000

1 to 2 years 
$000

2 to 5 years 
$000

More than 
5 years  

$000

Total 
contractual 
cash flows 

$000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables Non-bearing (285,016) – – – (285,016)

Revolving credit 4.4 (13,376) (13,376) (333,085) – (359,837)

Wholesale term notes 7.4 (14,449) (14,449) (165,653) (87,430) (281,981)

Retail term notes 7.8 (16,733) (136,733) (121,065) – (274,531)

Capital bonds 9.1 (23,375) (23,375) (70,125) (837,281) (954,156)

Finance lease payable 7.1 (4,280) (4,280) (1,783) – (10,343)

(357,229) (192,213) (691,711) (924,711) (2,165,864)

Derivative assets (liabilities)

Net settled derivatives

Interest rate swaps (cash flow hedges) (1,522) (1,022) (3,613) (4,988) (11,145)

Interest rate swaps (fair value hedges) 790 728 2,036 – 3,554

Electricity swaps (cash flow hedges) 4,804 2,045 (717) 5,948 12,080

Electricity swaps and options (not designated as hedges) 1,362 5,043 (3,621) – 2,784

Oil swaps (cash flow hedges) – 671 – – 671

Oil swaps and options (not designated as hedges) 2,216 286 12 – 2,514

Gross settled derivatives

Foreign exchange swaps (cash flow hedges)

– Inflows 2,451 234 – – 2,685

– Outflows (1,180) (407) – – (1,587)

Foreign exchange options (not designated as hedges)

– Inflows 7,317 – – – 7,317

– Outflows (7,512) – – – (7,512)

8,726 7,578 (5,903) 960 11,361

The foreign exchange swaps and options cash flows above includes $0.4 million outflow in the ‘less than one year’ category in relation to capital 
projects which would not be recognised in profit or loss.
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33. Financial risk management continued

As at 30 June 2011 Group

Weighted average 
effective interest rate 

%

Less than 
1 year 
$000

1 to 2 years 
$000

2 to 5 years 
$000

More than 
5 years  

$000

Total 
contractual 
cash flows 

$000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables Non-bearing (241,462) – – – (241,462)

Revolving credit 3.3 (407,831) (53,189) (62,976) – (523,996)

Wholesale term notes 7.5 (14,516) (14,516) (43,549) (224,252) (296,833)

Retail term notes 7.8 (16,733) (16,733) (257,798) – (291,264)

Capital bonds 9.1 (20,925) (23,375) (70,125) (859,375) (973,800)

Finance lease payable 7.1 (4,277) (4,277) (6,058) – (14,612)

(705,744) (112,090) (440,506) (1,083,627) (2,341,967)

Derivative assets (liabilities)

Net settled derivatives

Interest rate swaps (cash flow hedges) (1,207) (427) 504 3,597 2,467

Electricity swaps (cash flow hedges) (920) (183) (1,571) 10,244 7,570

Electricity swaps and options (not designated as hedges) 9,705 10,741 14,457 (3,083) 31,820

Oil swaps and options (not designated as hedges) (5,885) (1,584) 119 – (7,350)

Gross settled derivatives

Foreign exchange swaps (cash flow hedges)

– Inflows 1,761 1,775 – – 3,536

– Outflows (4,031) (552) (291) – (4,874)

Foreign exchange options (not designated as hedges)

– Inflows 40,281 – – – 40,281

– Outflows (38,536) – – – (38,536)

1,168 9,770 13,218 10,758 34,914

The foreign exchange swaps and options cash flows above includes $0.3 million outflow in the ‘less than one year’ category in relation to capital 
projects which would not be recognised in profit or loss.
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As at 30 June 2012 Parent

Weighted average 
effective interest rate 

%

Less than 
1 year 
$000

1 to 2 years 
$000

2 to 5 years 
$000

More than 
5 years  

$000

Total 
contractual 
cash flows 

$000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables Non-bearing (274,319) – – – (274,319)

Revolving credit  4.4 (13,376) (13,376) (333,085) – (359,837)

Wholesale term notes  7.4 (14,449) (14,449) (165,653) (87,430) (281,981)

Retail term notes  7.8 (16,733) (136,733) (121,065) – (274,531)

Capital bonds  9.1 (23,375) (23,375) (70,125) (837,281) (954,156)

Finance lease payable  7.1 (4,280) (4,280) (1,783) – (10,343)

(346,532) (192,213) (691,711) (924,711) (2,155,167)

Derivative assets (liabilities)

Net settled derivatives

Interest rate swaps (cash flow hedges) (1,522) (1,022) (3,613) (4,988) (11,145)

Interest rate swaps (fair value hedges) 790 728 2,036 – 3,554

Electricity swaps (cash flow hedges) 4,804 2,045 (717) 5,948 12,080

Electricity swaps and options (not designated as hedges) 1,362 5,043 (3,621) – 2,784

Gross settled derivatives

Foreign exchange swaps (cash flow hedges)

– Inflows 2,697 259 – – 2,956

– Outflows (3,583) (418) – – (4,001)

Foreign exchange options (not designated as hedges)

– Inflows 7,317 – – – 7,317

– Outflows (7,512) – – – (7,512)

4,353 6,635 (5,915) 960 6,033

The foreign exchange swaps and options cash flows above includes $0.4 million outflow in the ‘less than one year’ category in relation to capital 
projects which would not be recognised in profit or loss.
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33. Financial risk management continued

As at 30 June 2011 Parent

Weighted average 
effective interest rate 

%

Less than 
1 year 
$000

1 to 2 years 
$000

2 to 5 years 
$000

More than 
5 years  

$000

Total 
contractual 
cash flows 

$000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables Non-bearing (213,959) – – – (213,959)

Revolving credit  3.3 (407,831) (53,189) (62,976) – (523,996)

Wholesale term notes  7.5 (14,516) (14,516) (43,549) (224,252) (296,833)

Retail term notes  7.8 (16,733) (16,733) (257,798) – (291,264)

Capital bonds  9.1 (20,925) (23,375) (70,125) (859,375) (973,800)

Finance lease payable  7.1 (4,277) (4,277) (6,058) – (14,612)

(678,241) (112,090) (440,506) (1,083,627) (2,314,464)

Derivative assets (liabilities)

Net settled derivatives

Interest rate swaps (cash flow hedges) (1,207) (427) 504 3,597 2,467

Electricity swaps (cash flow hedges) (920) (183) (1,571) 10,244 7,570

Electricity swaps and options (not designated as hedges) 9,705 10,741 14,457 (3,083) 31,820

Gross settled derivatives

Foreign exchange swaps (cash flow hedges)

– Inflows 1,761 1,775 – – 3,536

– Outflows (5,349) (2,327) (291) – (7,967)

Foreign exchange options (not designated as hedges)

– Inflows 40,281 – – – 40,281

– Outflows (38,536) – – – (38,536)

5,735 9,579 13,099 10,758 39,171

The foreign exchange swaps and options cash flows above includes $0.3 million outflow in the ‘less than one year’ category in relation to capital 
projects which would not be recognised in profit or loss.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital in a prudent 
manner to ensure that entities in the Group will 
be able to continue as going concerns while 
maximising the return to stakeholders through 
the appropriate balance of debt and equity. 
This is achieved by ensuring that the level and 
timing of its capital investment programmes, 
equity raisings and dividend distributions are 
consistent with the Group’s capital structure 
strategy. This strategy remains unchanged 
from previous years. The capital structure of 

the Group consists of debt, which includes the 
borrowings disclosed in note 30, cash and cash 
equivalents as disclosed in note 19 and equity 
attributable to the shareholders of Genesis 
Power Limited, comprising issued capital, 
reserves and retained earnings as disclosed 
in the balance sheet. During 2011 the Parent 
issued capital bonds which are included in the 
borrowings disclosed in note 30. These capital 
bonds are treated as equity by Standard & 
Poor’s for credit rating assessment purposes. 
This treatment supports the Group’s strategy of 

managing its capital in a prudent manner.

Under the Group’s debt funding facilities, the 
Group has given undertakings that the ratio 
of debt to equity will not exceed a prescribed 
level and the interest cover will not be below 
a prescribed level. For the purpose of these 
undertakings, the capital bonds and related 
interest costs are treated as equity. The 
covenants are monitored on a regular basis to 
ensure they are complied with. There were no 
breaches in covenants during the year (2011: nil).
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The carrying value of financial assets and liabilities in the balance sheet approximates their fair values with the exception of the finance lease 
receivable, wholesale term notes, retail term notes and capital bonds. A comparison of the fair value and carrying value of these instruments is 
disclosed below:

Group Parent

Carrying value 
$000

Fair value 
$000

Carrying value 
$000

Fair value 
$000

As at 30 June 2012

Finance lease receivable 6,861 7,541 – – 

Wholesale term notes (200,699) (215,640) (200,699) (215,640)

Retail term notes (228,005) (247,053) (228,005) (247,053)

Capital bonds (274,058) (296,450) (274,058) (296,450)

As at 30 June 2011

Finance lease receivable 18,302 19,253 – – 

Wholesale term notes (197,231) (211,573) (197,231) (211,573)

Retail term notes (227,317) (245,701) (227,317) (245,701)

Capital bonds (270,418) (282,425) (270,418) (282,425)

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities 
are determined as follows:

– The fair value of financial assets and 
liabilities with standard terms and conditions 
and traded on active liquid markets are 
determined with reference to quoted 
market prices.

– Where market prices are not available, 
estimated discounted cash flow analyses 
using the applicable yield curve or available 
forward price data for the duration of the 
instruments is used.

– Where the fair value of a derivative is 
calculated as the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows of the instrument, 
the two key types of variables used are: 

(i) Future price curve (for the relevant 
underlying interest rates, foreign exchange 
rates or commodity prices) 
(ii) Discount rates.

Financial instruments fair value hierarchy

The Group’s financial instruments are 
categorised into one of three levels as follows:

Level one – the fair value is determined using 
unadjusted quoted prices from an active 
market for identical assets and liabilities. 
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices 
are readily and regularly available from an 
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing 
service or regulatory agency, and those prices 
represent actual and regularly occurring market 
transactions on an arm’s-length basis. 

Level two – the fair value is derived from inputs 
other than quoted prices included within level 
one that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. 
derived from prices). Financial instruments in 
this level include interest rate swaps, foreign 
exchange swaps and options, and oil swaps and 
options and electricity derivatives which are 
valued using observable electricity price paths.

Level three – the fair value is derived from 
inputs that are not based on observable market 
data. Financial instruments included in this 
level include electricity derivatives which are 
valued using internally generated electricity 
price paths.

There were no transfers between levels one, two 
and three during the year (2011: nil).
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33. Financial risk management continued Note
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Level 2

Derivatives

– Interest rate swaps (6,728) 1,426 (6,728) 1,426

– Foreign exchange swaps and options 1,102 573 (1,014) (2,434)

– Oil swaps and options 3,119 (7,160) – – 

– Electricity swaps (not designated as hedges) 2,138 (1,392) 2,138 (1,392)

(369) (6,553) (5,604) (2,400)

Level 3

Derivatives

– Electricity swaps (cash flow hedges) 4,189 (2,512) 4,189 (2,512)

– Electricity swaps and options (not designated as hedges) (41,247) (17,185) (41,247) (17,185)

(37,058) (19,697) (37,058) (19,697)

Total derivatives 32 (37,427) (26,250) (42,662) (22,097)

A reconciliation of movements in level three instruments has been disclosed in note 32.

Valuation of interest rate swaps

The valuation of interest rate swaps is based on 
a forward interest rate price curve discounted at 
the forward interest rate price curve at balance 
date. The forward interest rate price curve used in 
the valuation ranged from 2.5 per cent to 4.8 per 
cent (2011: 2.7 per cent to 6.7 per cent) and the 
forward interest rate price curve at balance date 
used in the valuation ranged from 2.5 per cent to 
4.8 per cent (2011: 2.7 per cent to 6.7 per cent).

Valuation of foreign exchange swaps and 
options 

The valuation of foreign exchange swaps is based 
on forward foreign exchange rate curves at 
balance date, discounted at the forward interest 
rate price curve at balance date. The underlying 
spot foreign exchange rates used in the valuation 
were USD 0.80, AUD 0.78, JPY 63.6, EUR 0.63 
and GBP 0.51 (2011: USD 0.83, AUD 0.77, JPY 
66.8 and EUR 0.57) and the forward interest rate 
curve used in the valuation ranged from 2.5 per 
cent to 4.8 per cent (2011: 2.7 per cent to 6.7 per 
cent). Options are valued based on the valuation 
obtained from counterparty banks.

Valuation of oil swaps and options

The valuation of oil swaps is based on the 
forward oil price and foreign exchange rate 
curves at balance date discounted at the 
forward interest rate price curve at balance 
date. The average forward oil price used in the 
valuation was USD 97.43 (2011: USD 108.77), the 
foreign exchange rate curve was USD 0.80 (2011: 
USD 0.83) and the forward interest rate price 
curve used in the valuation ranged from 2.5 per 
cent to 4.8 per cent (2011: 2.7 per cent to 6.7 per 
cent). Oil options are based on the valuations 
obtained from counterparty banks converted 
to New Zealand dollars using the spot rate at 
the valuation date. The spot rate used in the 
valuations was USD 0.80 (2011: USD 0.83).

Valuation of electricity swaps and options

The valuation of electricity swaps in level two is 
based on the ASX forward price curve that relates 
to the derivative.

The valuation of electricity swaps in level three 
is based on a forecasted internally generated 
electricity price path. The forecasted internally 

generated price path incorporates assumptions 
relating to electricity demand, 79 years of 
historical hydrological inflow data, existing and 
future generation plant and offer strategies for the 
respective plant.

The valuation of electricity options is based on a 
discounted cash flow model over the life of the 
agreement. The key assumptions in the model 
are: the callable volumes, strike price and option 
fees outlined in the agreement, the forecasted 
internally generated electricity price path, day one 
gains and losses, carbon credits and the discount 
rate. The internally generated price path is based 
on the average price calculated over 79 years of 
historical hydrological inflow data. The options 
are deemed to be called when the internally 
generated price path is higher than the strike 
prices after taking into account rules relating to 
the specific terms of each contract. The discount 
rate used in the model was 2.5 per cent to 4.8 per 
cent (2011: 2.7 per cent to 6.7 per cent) and the 
carbon credit price used ranged between $7.92 
and $15.43 (2011: $10.50 and $23.67).
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33. Financial risk management continued The selection of variables used to value the 
electricity swaps and options for level three 
requires significant judgement and therefore 
there is a range of reasonably possible 
assumptions that could be used in estimating 
the fair value of these derivatives. The key 
assumptions driving potential changes to 
the forecast internally generated price path 
are changes in demand, hydrology and new 
generation build. Any one of these factors 
could result in a change to the price path. If the 
price path increased by 10 per cent, this would 
result in the carrying value of the electricity 
derivatives increasing to $107.6-million liability 

(2011: $113.9-million liability). If the price path 
decreased by 10 per cent, the carrying value 
would decrease to $26.7-million asset (2011: 
$67-million asset). 

Deferred ‘day 1’ gains (losses)

Where the Group estimates fair values of 
derivatives using internally generated future 
price paths, as is the case with electricity 
derivatives, the instrument is fair valued at 
inception and the difference arising between 
the estimated fair value and its cost (nil) is a 
deferred day 1 gain/loss. Other than for some 
electricity options, the valuation adjustment is 

eliminated by adjusting the future price path 
used to determine the fair value of an electricity 
derivative by a constant dollar amount to return 
the initial fair value to nil. For electricity options, 
the valuation adjustment is effectively amortised 
based on expected call volumes over the term 
of the contract. The carrying value of derivatives 
is disclosed net of the day 1 adjustments.

The following table details the movements 
and amounts of deferred ‘day 1’ gains/
losses included in the fair value of electricity 
derivatives held at balance date:

Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Balance at 1 July 47,017 34,499 47,017 34,499

Deferred day 1 gains (losses) on new derivatives 3,942 15,903 3,942 15,903

Deferred day 1 gains (losses) realised during the year (10,781) (3,385) (10,781) (3,385)

Balance at 30 June 40,178 47,017 40,178 47,017

34. Commitments Capital commitments
Group 2012 

$000
Group 2011 

$000
Parent 2012 

$000
Parent 2011 

$000

Not later than one year 22,496 9,074 17,033 8,106

Later than one year but not later than five years 8,468 8,195 8,468 8,195

Total capital commitments 30,964 17,269 25,501 16,301

The capital commitments disclosed above include $5.5 million in relation to Kupe Joint Venture (2011: $1 million).

Operating lease commitments

Where the Group is lessee

The Group leases building accommodation for 
its Customer Experience and Corporate offices, 

and land for its generation sites under operating 
lease arrangements. The Group also leases 
vehicles and certain office equipment. These 
leases are of a rental nature and are on normal 
commercial terms and conditions. These leases 

have varying lease periods up to 20 years. 
In some cases, renewal rights exist with market 
review clauses. The Group does not have any 
options to purchase the leased assets at the 
expiry of the lease period.

Group 2012 
$000

Group 2011 
$000

Parent 2012 
$000

Parent 2011 
$000

Not later than one year 9,617 10,067 7,227 7,641

Later than one year but not later than five years 29,270 28,886 22,101 20,901

Later than five years 17,257 33,324 15,594 30,127

Total operating lessee commitments 56,144 72,277 44,922 58,669

Lease commitments are disclosed exclusive of GST.
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35. Contingent assets and liabilities The Group and Parent had contingent assets 
and liabilities at 30 June 2012 in respect of:

Land claims, law suits and other claims

The Parent acquired interests in land and leases 
from ECNZ on 1 April 1999. These interests in 
land and leases may be subject to claims to the 
Waitangi Tribunal and may be resumed by the 
Crown. The Parent would expect to negotiate 
with the new Māori owners for occupancy 
and usage rights of any sites resumed by the 
Crown. Certain claims have been brought to 
or are pending against the Parent, ECNZ and 
the Crown under the Treaty of Waitangi Act 
1975. Some of these claims may affect land 

and leases purchased by the Parent or its 
subsidiaries from ECNZ. In the event that land 
is resumed by the Crown, there is provision for 
compensation to the Parent.

The Board of Directors cannot reasonably 
estimate the adverse effect (if any) on the 
Parent if any of the foregoing claims are 
ultimately resolved against it, or any contingent 
or currently unknown costs or liabilities 
crystallise. There can be no assurances that 
these claims will not have a material adverse 
effect on the Group’s business, financial 
condition or results of operations.

Kupe production facilities claims

Between 2008 and 2011, Kupe production 
facilities experienced plant failure issues which 
have been reported to the insurer. Claims will 
not be formally accepted by insurers until 
options under warranty claims have been 
agreed to. The plant failures reduced output 
for four months during 2011, with delays in gas 
production in the order of 1.7PJ. Associated 
costs incurred in the year have been expensed. 
Compensation in relation to the failures has 
not been recognised at balance date given the 
status of the claims.

There are no other known material contingent 
assets or liabilities (2011: nil).

36. Events occurring after balance date There have been no significant events subsequent to balance date.
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The Auditor-General is the auditor of Genesis 
Power Limited (the Company) and Group. The 
Auditor-General has appointed me, Ian Marshall, 
using the staff and resources of Deloitte, to 
carry out the audit of the financial statements 
of the Company and Group, on her behalf. 

We have audited the financial statements of 
the Company and Group on pages 3 to 58, 
that comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 
2012, the comprehensive income statement, 
statement of changes in equity and cash flow 
statement for the year ended on that date 
and the notes to the financial statements 
that include accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

Opinion 

Financial statements 

In our opinion, the financial statements of the 
Company and Group on pages 3 to 58:

•	 comply	with	generally	accepted	accounting	
practice in New Zealand;

•	 comply	with	International	Financial	Reporting	
Standards; and

•	 give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	Company 
and Group’s:

- financial position as at 30 June 2012; and

- financial performance and cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

Other legal requirements

In accordance with the Financial Reporting 
Act 1993, we report that, in our opinion, proper 
accounting records have been kept by the 
Company and Group as far as appears from an 
examination of those records.

Our audit was completed on 22 August 2012. 
This is the date at which our opinion is expressed.

The basis of our opinion is explained below. 
In addition, we outline the responsibilities of 
the Board of Directors and our responsibilities, 
and explain our independence.

Basis of opinion

We carried out our audit in accordance with 
the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, 
and the International Standards on Auditing 
(New Zealand). Those standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and carry out our audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

Material misstatements are differences or 
omissions of amounts and disclosures that 
would affect a reader’s overall understanding 
of the financial statements. If we had found 
material misstatements that were not corrected, 
we would have referred to them in our opinion.

An audit involves carrying out procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including our assessment of risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In making those risk assessments, we consider 
internal control relevant to the preparation of the 
Company and Group’s financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the matters to which 
they relate. We consider internal control in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Company and Group’s internal control. 

An audit also involves evaluating:

•	 the	appropriateness	of	accounting	
policies used and whether they have been 
consistently applied;

•	 the	reasonableness	of	the	significant	
accounting estimates and judgements 
made by the Board of Directors;

•	 the	adequacy	of	all	disclosures	in	the	
financial statements; and

•	 the	overall	presentation	of	the 
financial statements.

We did not examine every transaction, nor 
do we guarantee complete accuracy of the 
financial statements. In accordance with the 
Financial Reporting Act 1993, we report that 
we have obtained all the information and 
explanations we have required. We believe 
we have obtained sufficient and appropriate 
audit evidence to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for 
preparing financial statements that:

•	 comply	with	generally	accepted	accounting	
practice in New Zealand; and

•		give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	Company	
and Group’s financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible 
for such internal control as it determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Board of Directors’ responsibilities arise 
from the State-Owned Enterprises Act 1986 and 
the Financial Reporting Act 1993. 
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Responsibilities of the Auditor

We are responsible for expressing an 
independent opinion on the financial 
statements and reporting that opinion to 
you based on our audit. Our responsibility 
arises from section 15 of the Public Audit Act 
2001 and section 19(1) of the State-Owned 
Enterprises Act 1986.

Independence

When carrying out the audit, we followed the 
independence requirements of the Auditor-
General, which incorporate the independence 
requirements of the New Zealand Institute of 
Chartered Accountants.

In addition to the audit, we have carried out 
other assurance assignments in respect of 
the Global Reporting Initiative, the half-
year review and trustee reporting, which 
are compatible with those independence 
requirements. Principals and employees of our 
firm also deal with Genesis Power Limited on 

arm’s-length terms within the ordinary course 
of trading activities of the Group. Other than 
the audit, these engagements and arm’s-length 
transactions, we have no relationship with or 
interests in Genesis Power Limited and Group. 

Ian Marshall
Deloitte
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Hamilton, New Zealand

This audit report relates to the financial statements of Genesis Power Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2012 included on the Company’s website. The Board of Directors is 
responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. We have not been engaged to report on the integrity of the Company’s website. We accept no responsibility for any 
changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website. The audit report refers only to the financial statements named above. It does 
not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to or from the financial statements. If readers of this report are concerned with the inherent risks arising 
from electronic data communication, they should refer to the published hard copy of the audited financial statements and related audit report dated 22 August 2012 to confirm the information 
included in the audited financial statements presented on this website. Legislation in New Zealand governing the preparation and dissemination of financial information may differ from 
legislation in other jurisdictions.


